	SOP HW-3 Revision August 200
SOP NO. HW-34/Trace VO USEPA Contract Laboratory Pr Statement of Work for Organic An Concentration of Volatile Organic Compo Data Validation	DA rogram alysis of Trace ounds SOM01.2
CAVING DE LA	
Prepared by: <u>Alocal Karras</u> George Karras, Chemist	Date: 8/13/87
Peer Reviewed by: Russell Arnone, Chemist Hazardous Waste Support Section	Date: 10/3/07
Concurred by: Inda Mauel, Chief Hazardous Waste Support Section	Date: 10/9/07
APPROVED BY: Robert Runyon, Chief Hazardous Waste Support Branch	Date: 10/10/07
Annual Review Reviewed by:	Date:
Reviewed by:	Date:

# SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles SOP HW-34

## TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRO	ODUCTION	. <u>1</u>
	Scope and Applicability	. <u>1</u>
	Summary	. <u>1</u>
	Data Qualifiers	. <u>1</u>
	Lab Qualifiers	. <u>2</u>
	Reviewer Qualifications	. <u>2</u>
PACK	AGE COMPLETENESS AND DELIVERABLES	. 3
	1. <u>Chain of Custody and Sampling Trip Reports</u>	. 3
	2. Data Completeness and Deliverables	. 3
	3. <u>Cover Letter SDG Narrative</u>	. 4
	4. Data Validation Checklist	. <u>5</u>
PART	A: VOA ANALYSES	. 5
	1. Sample Conditions/Problems	. 5
	2. Holding Times	. 6
	3. Deuterated Monitoring Compound (DMC) Recovery (Form II	) 7
	4 Matrix Spike/Matrix Spike Duplicate Recovery (Form III	$\frac{1}{10}$
	5. Method Blanks (Form IV)	11
	6. Contamination	13
	7 GC/MS Instrument Performance Check (Form V)	$\frac{10}{16}$
	8 Target Compound List (TCL) Analytes (Form I)	19
	9 Tentatively Identified Compounds (TIC)	20
	10 Compound Quantitation and Reported Detection Limits	21
	11 Standards Data (GC/MS)	22
	12 CC/MS Initial Calibration (Form VI)	22
	12 <u>GC/MS initial calibration (Form VI)</u>	<u> </u>
	15. <u>GC/MS COntinuing Calibration Verification (CCV) (Form</u>	24
	$\frac{V \perp 1}{2} \qquad \dots \qquad $	24
	14. <u>Internal Standard (Form VIII)</u>	20
	15. <u>Field Duplicates</u>	<u>21</u>
	Definitions	<u>28</u>
	References	<u>29</u>

#### INTRODUCTION

### Scope and Applicability

This SOP offers detailed guidance in evaluating laboratory data generated according to the method in the "USEPA Contract Laboratory Program Statement of Work for Organics Analysis Multi-Media, Multi-Concentration, SOM01.2, May 2005". The method is based on EPA Volatile Method 524.2. The validation procedures and actions discussed in this document are based on the requirements set forth in the "USEPA Contract Laboratory Program National Functional Guidelines for Superfund Organic Methods Data Review, January 2005". This document attempts to cover technical problems specific to trace concentration of volatile compounds. Situations may arise where data limitations must be assessed based on the reviewer's own professional judgement.

In addition to technical requirements, contractual requirements may also be covered in this document. While it is important that instances of contract non-compliance be addressed in the Data Assessment, the technical criteria are always used to qualify the analytical data.

#### Summary

To ensure a thorough evaluation of each result in a data case, the reviewer must complete the checklist within this SOP, answering specific questions while performing the prescribed "ACTIONS" in each section. Qualifiers (or flags) are applied to questionable or unusable results as instructed. The data qualifiers discussed in this document are as follows:

### Data Qualifiers

- U The analyte was analyzed for, but was not detected above the reported sample quantitation limit.
- J The analyte was positively identified; the associated numerical value is the approximate concentration of the analyte in the sample.
- N The analysis indicates the presence of an analyte for which there is presumptive evidence to make a "tentative identification."
- JN The analysis indicates the presence of an analyte that has been "tentatively identified" and the associated numerical value represents its approximate concentration.

- UJ The analyte was not detected above the reported sample quantitation limit. However, the reported quantitation limit is approximate and may or may not represent the actual limit of quantitation necessary to accurately and precisely measure the analyte in the sample.
- R The sample results are rejected due to serious deficiencies in the ability to analyze the sample and meet quality control criteria. The presence or absence of the analyte cannot be verified.

### Lab Qualifiers:

- D The positive value is the result of an analysis at a secondary dilution factor.
- B The analyte is present in the associated method blank as well as in the sample. This qualifier has a different meaning when validating inorganic data.
- E The concentration of this analyte exceeds the calibration range of the instrument.

The reviewer must prepare a detailed data assessment to be submitted along with the completed SOP checklist. The Data Assessment must list all data qualifications, reasons for qualifications, instances of missing data and contract noncompliance.

### Reviewer Qualifications:

Data reviewers must possess a working knowledge of the USEPA Statement of Work SOM01.1 and National Functional Guidelines mentioned above.

USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles	Date: August 2007 SOP HW-34, Revision 1
	YES NO N/A
PACKAGE COMPLETENESS AND DE	LIVERABLES
CASE NUMBER: LAB:	
SITE NAME: SDG No(s).	:
1.0 Chain of Custody and Sampling Trip Reports	
1.1 Are the Traffic Reports/Chain-of-Cus present for all samples?	stody Records [_]
ACTION: If no, contact RSCC, or the TOPO replacement of missing or illegi from the lab.	to obtain ole copies
1.2 Is the Sampling Trip Report present samples?	for all
ACTION: If no, contact either RSCC or ask obtain the necessary information : contractor.	the TOPO to from the prime
2.0 Data Completeness and Deliverables	
2.1 Have any missing deliverables been and added to the data package?	received [_]
ACTION: Contact the TOPO to obtain an exp resubmittal of any missing deliver If lab cannot provide them, note a review of the data package in the Problems/Non-compliance section of Assessment.	lanation or rables from the lab. the effect on the Contract E the Data
2.2 Was CLASS CCS checklist included with package?	th the

USEP Metho	A Regio od: CLI	on II P/SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles S	Date: SOP HW-3	st 20 evisi	2007 ision 1		
<u> </u>				YES	NO	N/A	
	2.3	Are there any discrepancies between the Traf Reports/Chain-of-Custody Records, Sampling T Report and Sample Tags?	fic rip		[]		
	ACTIO	N: If yes, contact the TOPO to obtain an expl resubmittal of any missing deliverables fr laboratory.	anatior. com the	ı or			
3.0 <u>(</u>	Cover 1	Letter SDG Narrative					
	3.1	Is the SDG Narrative or Cover Letter Present	:?	[]			
	3.2	Are case number, SDG number and contract num contained in the SDG Narrative or cover lett (see SOW, Exhibit B, section 2.5.1)? EPA sample numbers in the SDG, detailed documentation of any quality control, sample shipment, and/or analytical problems encount in processing the samples? Corrective action taken?	uber ter 2, tered	<u>[ ]</u>			
	3.3	Does the Narrative contain description of co and trap used(see SOM, page B-12, section 2.	)lumn 5.1)?				
	3.4	Does the narrative, VOA section, contain a l of all TICs identified as alkanes and their estimated concentrations?	.ist	[]			
	3.5	Did the contractor record the temperature of cooler on the Form DC-1, Item 9 - Cooler Temperature, and in the SDG Narrative?	the	[_]			
	3.6	Does the narrative contain a list of the pH values determined for each water sample subm for volatiles analysis (SOW, page B-13, sect 2.5.1.2)?	itted	[]			
3	8.7 Do st	pes the Case Narrative contain the "verbatim" atement (page B-12, section 2.5.1 of the SOM	)?	[_]			

USEPA Metho	Re d:	egi CLI	on 1 P/SC	II W,	SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles	D SOP	ate: HW-3	Aug 4,	ust Revi	200 sio	7 n 1
						•		YES	N	)	N/A
ACTIO	N:	If the una N	E "N e TC avai Ion-	lo" PO lla Con	, to any question in this section, co to obtain necessary resubmittals. I ble, document under the Contract Pro mpliance section of the Data Assessme	ontact If blems ent.	/				
4.0 <u>D</u> a	ata	a Va	alid	lat	ion Checklist						
	4.1	L	Che rec	eck Jui	the package for the following (see rements, section 2.1, page B-10):	SOM r	eport	ing	ſ		
			a.	Is st	the package paginated in ascending arting from the SDG narrative?	order		[]			
			b.	Ar	e all forms and copies legible?			[]			
			c.	As	sembled in the order set forth in th	e SOW	?	[]	<u> </u>	_	
			d.	Tr	ace Concentration Volatiles Data pre	sent?		[ ]	<u> </u>		
					PART A: Trace VOA ANALYS	<u>ES</u>					
1.0 <u>s</u>	amp	<u>ple</u>	Cor	ndi	tions/Problems						

- 1.1 Do the Traffic Reports/Chain-of-Custody Records, Sampling Trip Report or Lab Narrative indicate any problems with sample receipt, condition of samples, analytical problems or special circumstances affecting the quality of the data? \_\_\_\_\_ [ ] \_\_\_\_
- ACTION: If samples were not iced or the ice was melted upon arrival at the laboratory and the temperature of the cooler was > 10° C, then flag all positive results with a "J" and all non-detects "UJ".
- ACTION: If both VOA vials for a sample have air bubbles or the VOA vial analyzed had air bubbles, flag all positive results "J" and all non-detects "R".

### 2.0 Holding Times

[\_]

USEPA Region II	Date: August 2007	
Method: CLP/SOW,	SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles	SOP HW-34, Revision 1
		YES NO N/A

2.1 Have any VOA technical holding times, determined from date of collection to date of analysis, been exceeded?

<u>Technical Holding Times</u>: The technical holding time criterion for water samples is 14 days from sample collection provided that samples are acid-preserved to pH 2 or below, and that they are cooled at  $4 \circ C \pm 2 \circ C$ . Review the SDG Narrative to determine if samples were preserved and arrived at the laboratory in proper condition. If there is no indication in the SDG Narrative, the TR/COC, or the sample records that there was a problem with the samples, the integrity of samples can be assumed to be acceptable. For aqueous samples that were properly cooled, but which have no indication of being preserved, the maximum holding time is 7 days from sample collection.

ACTION: List sampling, VTSR, analysis dates and preservation for samples which missed holding time in the table below.

### Table of Holding Time Violations

(See Chain-of-Custody Records)

Sample ID	Was Sample Preserved?	Date Sampled	Date Lab Received	Date Analyzed

- ACTION: Qualify sample results using preservation and technical holding time information as follows:
  - a. If there is no evidence that the samples were properly preserved (acid and ice), but were analyzed within the technical holding time (7 days from sample collection), no qualification of the data is required.

USEPA R	egion II			Da	ate: A	Augu	st 20	07
Method:	CLP/SOW,	SOM01.2/Trace	Volatiles	SOP	HW-34	4, R	evisi	on 1
<u></u>					Ţ	YES	NO	N/A

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

- b. If there is no evidence that the samples were properly preserved (acid and ice), and the samples were analyzed outside of the technical holding time (7 days from sample collection), qualify detects for <u>all volatile compounds</u> "J" and non-detects "R".
- c. If the samples were properly preserved (acid and ice), and the samples were analyzed within the technical holding time (14 days from sample collection), no qualification of the data is required.
- d. If the samples were properly preserved(acid and ice), but were analyzed outside of the technical holding time (14 days from sample collection), qualify detects "J" and non-detects "R".

### 3.0 <u>Deuterated Monitoring Compound (DMC) Recovery (Form II)</u>

3.1	Are	the	Volatile	DMC	Recovery	Summaries	(Form	II		
	pres	sent?	?						[ ]	 

- ACTION: Contact the TOPO to obtain an explanation/resubmittal from the lab. If missing deliverables are unavailable, document the effect in the Data Assessment.
- 3.2 Were outliers marked correctly with an asterisk? [] \_\_\_\_\_

ACTION: Circle all outliers in red.

3.3	Were more than three of the fourteen (14) Deuterated Monitoring Compounds (DMC's)	
	recoveries outside their corresponding limits?	[_]
	If yes, were samples re-analyzed?	<u> </u>
	Were method blanks re-analyzed?	<u>[]</u>

ACTION: If any DMC is outside the required limits (see Table below), qualify their associated target compounds (See Table below) as follows:

USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles Date: August 2007 SOP HW-34, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

VOLATILE DMC AND THEIR ASSOCIATED TARGET COMPOUNDS

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

<u>Chloroethane-d5</u>	1,2-Dichloropropane-d6	1,2-Dichlorobenzene-d4
Dichlorodifluoromethane Chloromethane Bromomethane Chloroethane Carbon Disulfide	Cyclohexane Methylcyclohexane 1,2-Dichloropropane Bromodichloromethane	Chlorobenzene 1,3-Dichlorobenzene 1,4-Dichlorobenzene 1,2-Dichlorobenzene 1,2,4-Trichlorobenzene 1,2,3-Trichlorobenzene
	<pre>trans-1,3- Dichloropropene-d4 cis-1,3-Dichloropropene trans-1,3- Dichloropropene 1,1,2-Trichloroethane</pre>	<u>Chloroform-d</u> 1,1-Dichloroethane Bromochloromethane Chloroform Dibromochloromethane Bromoform
<u>2-Butanone-d5</u> Acetone 2-butanone	<pre>1,1-dichloroethene-d2 1,1-dichloroethene trans-1,2- Dichloroethene cis-1,2-Dichloroethene</pre>	<u>2-Hexanone-d5</u> 4-Methyl-2-pentanone 2-Hexanone

## USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles

## Date: August 2007 SOP HW-34, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

1,2-Dichloroethane-d4 Toluene-d8 Trichlorofluoromethane Trichloroethene 1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-Toluene Tetrachloroethene trifluoroethane Ethylbenzene Methyl Acetate o-Xylenes Methylene Chloride Methyl tert-Butyl Ether m,p-Xylene Carbon Tetrachloride Styrene 1,2-Dichloroethane Isopropylbenzene 1,1,1-Trichloroethane 1,2-Dibromoethane

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

### VOLATILE DEUTERATED MONITORING COMPOUND RECOVERY LIMITS

DMC	%RECOVERY LIMITS	DMC	%RECOVERY LIMITS
Vinyl Chloride-d3	65-131	1,2- Dichloropropane- d6	79-124
Chloroethane-d5	71-131	Toluene-d8	77-121
DMC	%RECOVERY LIMITS	DMC	%RECOVERY LIMITS
1,1- Dichloroethene-d2	55-104	trans-1,3- Dichloropropane-d4	73-121
2-Butanone-d5	49-155	2-Hexanone-d5	28-135
Chloroform-d	78-121		
1,2- Dichloroethane-d4	78-129	1,1,2,2- Tetrachloroethane-d2	73-125
Benzene-d6	77-124	1,2- Dichlorobenzene-d4	80-131

USEPA Region Method: CLP/S	II SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles	Date: August 2007 SOP HW-34, Revision 1
		· YES NO N/A
1.	. For any recovery greater than the upp	per limit:
	a. Qualify "J" all positive associated b. Do not qualify associated non-detect	target compounds. ts.
2.	. For any recovery greater than or equ less than the lower limit:	ual to 20%, but
	<ul><li>a. Qualify "J" all positive associated</li><li>b. Qualify "UJ" associated non-detects.</li></ul>	target compounds.
3.	. For any recovery less than 20%:	
	a. Qualify "J" all positive associated b. Qualify "R" all associated non-detec	target compounds. cts.
NOTE :	Up to three (3) DMC's per sample, and S meet the recovery limits. (SOM, sec. 11 VOA). As per SOM, any sample which has more t the limits, it must be reanalyzed (sec. pg. D-37/Trace VOA).	SIM analysis may fail to 1.4.4, pg. D-36/Trace chan 3 DMC's outside . 11.5.3
ACTION:	Note in the Data Assessment under Contr Non-Compliance if the Lab did not perfo	ract Problems/ orm reanalysis.
3.4	Are there any transcription/calculation between raw data and form II?	on errors [_]
ACTION:	If large errors exist, ask the TOPO to explanation/resubmittal from the lab, m necessary corrections and note errors is assessment.	obtain an make any in the data
Note:	DMC recovery limits criteria and qualif samples diluted 5X and less. For sample 5X, recovery criteria does not apply Be is diluted below the quantitation range	fication apply to es diluted greater than ecause it is assumed DMC e.

## 4.0 <u>Matrix Spike/Matrix Spike Duplicate Recovery (Form III)</u>

USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01	2/Trace Volatiles	Date: SOP HW-	Augu 34, R	st 200 evisio	)7 on 1
		•	YES	NO	N/A
<b>Note:</b> Data for MS	S/MSD will not be present unles	ss request	ed.		
4.1 Are the MS Trace VOA)	S/MSD Recovery Forms (Form III present?		<u> </u>		
4.2 Was the MS frequency whichever	S/MSD analyzed at the required (once per SDG, or every 20 sau is more frequent)?	mples,	[_]		
ACTION: If any MS specified	G/MSD data are missing, take a l in section 3.1 above.	ction as			
ACTION: No action	n is taken on MS/MSD data <u>alon</u>	<u>e.</u> However	`,		

using professional judgement, the validator may use the MS and MSD results in conjunction with other QC criteria and determine the need for some qualification of the data. If any MS/MSD % recovery or RPD is out of specification, qualify data to include the consideration of the existence of interference in the raw data. Consideration include, but not limited to the following "Action":

	Action			
Criteria	Detected Spiked Compounds	Non-detected Spiked Compounds		
<pre>%R or RPD &gt; Upper acceptance Limits</pre>	J	No qualification		
20% <u>&lt;</u> %R < Lower Acceptance Limits	J	UJ		
%R < 20%	J	Use Professional Judgement		
Lower Acceptance Limit < %R; RPD < Upper Acceptance Limit	No quali	fication		

### 5.0 <u>Method Blanks (Form IV)</u>

5.1 Is the Volatile Method Blank Summary (Form IV Trace VOA) present?

[]\_\_\_\_

A Reg: od: Cl	ion II LP/SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles S	Date: Augu SOP HW-34, H	ust 20 Revis:	007 Lon 1
		YES	NO	N/A
5.2	<u>Frequency of Analysis</u> : For the analysis of T Concentration VOA TCL compounds, has a metho blank been analyzed for each SDG or every 20 samples, whichever is more frequent?	[race od ) []		
5.3	Has a VOA method blank been analyzed after t calibration standards and once every 12 hour time period for each GC/MS instrument used?	che cs [_]		
5.4	Was a VOA instrument blank analyzed after ea sample/dilution that contains a target compo exceeding the initial calibration range (see page D-39/Trace VOA, section 12.1.1.3)?	ach bund SOM, []]		
ACTI	ON: If any method/instrument blank data are mi notify the TOPO to obtain resubmittals or explanation from the lab. If method blank unavailable, the reviewer may use professi judgement, or substitute field blank or tr data for missing method blank data.	lssing, an data are ional cip blank		
	If an instrument blank was not analyzed after containing a target analyte exceeding the in calibration standards, inspect the sample ch acquired immediately after this sample for p carryover. The system is considered unconta target analyte is below CRQL. Use profession to determine if carryover occurred and quali- accordingly.	er a sample nitial nromatogram possible aminated if pnal judgeme ify analyte	the ent (s)	
5.5	Was a storage blank analyzed once per SDG af all the samples were analyzed?	[ter [_]		
ACTI	ON: If storage blank data is missing, contact obtain any missing deliverables from the l If unavailable, note in the Contract Probl Compliance section of the Data Assessment.	the TOPO to Laboratory. Lems/Non-	D	
5.6	The validator should verify that the correct identification scheme for EPA blanks was use	ed. (See So	DM	

12

page B-39, section 3.3.7.3 for more information.)

USEPA Regi Method: CI	Date: August 2007 SOP HW-34, Revision			07 on 1	
			YES	NO	N/A
	Was the correct identification scheme used all Trace VOA blanks?	l for	[]		
ACTIC	ON: Contact the TOPO to obtain corrections f or make the necessary corrections. Docu "Contract Problems/Non-Compliance sectio Assessment all corrections made by the v	rom the l ment in t on of the validator.	.ab, .he Data		
5.7	<u>Chromatography</u> : review the blank raw data (RICs), quant. reports, data system printo	- chromat outs and s	ogram pectr	s a.	
	Also compare the storage blank raw data wi blank. Determine if contamination in the also present in the method blank.	th the me. storage b	thod lank	is	
	Is the chromatographic performance (baseli stability) for each instrument acceptable Trace VOAs?	ne for	[_]		
ACTIC	DN: Use professional judgement to determine the data.	the effec	t on		
5.8	Are all detected hits for target compounds method, and storage blanks less than the C	; in RQL?	[_]		
	Exception: Methylene Chloride, Acetone and be less than 2X times their respective CRQ	l 2-butano )Ls.	one mu	st	
ACTIC	ON: If no, an explanation and laboratory's c actions must be addressed in the case na the narrative contains no explanation, t note in the Contract Problems/Non-Compli of the Data Assessment.	orrective rrative. hen make ance sect	If a ion		
6.0 <u>Conta</u>	<u>mination</u>				
NOTE :	Water blanks", "drill blanks", and "disti blanks" are validated like any other sampl used to qualify data. Do not confuse them	lled wate .e, and ar with the	er Te <u>not</u> e othe	r	

13

QC blanks discussed below.

A Regio od: CLI	on II P/SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles S	Date: SOP HW:	: Augu -34, R	st 20 evisi	07 .on 1
			YES	NO	N/A
6.1	Does the storage blank contain positive resu (TCL and/or TICs) for Trace Concentration VC	ılts )As?		[_]	
6.2	Do any method/reagent/instrument blanks cont positive results (including TICs) for Trace Concentration VOAs?	ain		[_]	
NOTE :	Contaminated instrument blanks are unaccepta SOW (see page D-41/Trace VOA, section 12.1.6	(ble un)	nder tl	his	
ACTIO	N: Document in the Data Assessment under Cont Problems/Non-Compliance if a contaminated blank was submitted.	ract instru	ument		
ACTIO	N: Sample analysis results after the high cor sample must be evaluated for carryover. Sa meet the maximum carryover criteria as lis sec. 11.4.8.1, p. D-37/VOA.("the sample mu not contain a concentration above the CRQI for the target compounds that exceeded the in the contaminated sample.")	icentra imple r ited in ist ist j i limit	ation must n SOM t		
6.3	Do any field/trip/rinse blanks have positive Trace Concentration VOA results (including T	: ICs)?		[]	
ACTIO	N: Prepare a list of the samples associated w the contaminated blanks. (Attach a separa	vith ea ate sha	ach of eet.)		
NOTE :	All field blank results associated with a part of samples (may exceed one per case) must be qualify data. Trip blanks are used to qualify samples with which they were shipped. Blank qualified because of contamination in another Field blanks & trip blanks must be qualified monitoring compound, instrument performance spectral or calibration QC problems.	irticul e used fy on s may er blau for s crite	lar gro to ly thos not bo nk. system ria,	oup se e	
ACTIO	N: Follow the directions in the table below t TCL results due to contamination. Use the	co qua e large	lify est		

USEPA R	egion II		
Method:	CLP/SOW,	SOM01.2/Trace	Volatiles

Date: August 2007 SOP HW-34, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

. . . . . . . . . . . . .

value from all the associated blanks. If any blanks are grossly contaminated, all associated sample data should be qualified unusable (R).

Blank Type	Blank Result	Sample Result	Action for Samples
	Detects	Not detected	No qualification required
		< CRQL*	Report CRQL value with a U
	< CRQL *	2 CRQL and <2x the CRQL **	Report concentration of sample with a U
		> 2X CRQL **	No qualification required
	= CRQL *	< CRQL*	Report CRQL value with a U
Method, Field,		> CRQL*	No qualification required
Trip, Storage,		< CRQL*	Report CRQL value with a U
Instrument ***	> CRQL *	2 CRQL* & < blank contamination	Report for sample concentration with a U
		2 CRQL* and 2 blank contamination	No qualification required
	Gross contamination	Detects	Qualify results as unusable R
	TIC > 2ug/L	Detects	See "Action" below

\* 2x the CRQL for methylene chloride, 2-butanone and acetone

\*\* 4x the CRQL for methylene chloride, 2-butanone and acetone

\*\*\* Qualifications based on instrument blank results affect only the sample analyzed immediately after the sample that has target compounds that exceed the calibration range or non-target compounds that exceed 100 ug/L.

NOTE: Analytes qualified "U" for blank contamination are treated as "hits" when qualifying for calibration criteria.

Note: When applied as described in the table above, the contaminant concentration in the blank are multiplied by the sample dilution factor.

USEI Metl	PA Regionod: CL	on II P/SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles	Date: SOP HW-	August 34, Rev	t 20 visi	07 on 1
				YES	NO	N/A
	Note:	Gross contamination: greater than 2x the CF the CRQL for methylene chloride, 2-butanone	QL (gre e and ac	ater tl etone)	nan •	4x
	ACTIO	N : For TIC compounds, if the concentration sample is less than five times the conce the most contaminated associated blank, analyte "R" (unusable).	in the entratic flag th	n in e TIC		
	6.4	Are there field/rinse/equipment blanks asso with every sample?	ociated	[]		
	ACTIO	N: Note in data assessment that there is no field/rinse/equipment blank.	associa	ted		
		Exception: samples taken from a drinking not have associated field blanks.	water t	ap do		
7.0	<u>GC/MS</u>	Instrument Performance Check (Form V)				
	7.1	Are the GC/MS Instrument Performance Check (Form V) present for Bromofluorobenzene (BB	Forms B)?	<u>[ ]</u> .		
	7.2	Are the enhanced bar graph spectrum and mass/charge (m/z) listing for the BFB provi for each twelve hour shift?	.ded	<u> </u>		
	7.3	Did the 12-hour clock begin with either the injection of BFB, or in cases where a closi continuing calibration (CCV) was used as an opening CCV?	e .ng 1	<u>[]</u>		
	Liste	d below are some, but not necessarily all, e	examples	of ac	cept	able

Listed below are some, but not necessarily all, examples of acceptable analytical sequences incorporating the use of the opening/closing CCV. Use these examples as a guide for possible analytical sequences that can be expected.

Conditions for When	Acceptable Criteria	Notes:
Example Sequence is	That Must be Met:	
Appropriate:		

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

## USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles

## Date: August 2007 SOP HW-34, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

If time remains on the 12 hour clock after initial calibration sequence	<ul> <li>BFB tunes meet instrument performance criteria.</li> <li>The five initial calibration standards meet initial calibration criteria.</li> <li>CCV A meets both opening and closing CCV criteria</li> <li>CCV B meets closing CCV criteria.</li> </ul>	The requirement of starting the new 12-hr clock for Analytical Sequence 2 with a new BFB tune is waived if CCV A meets opening CCV criteria. If CCV B meets opening CCV criteria, a method blank and subsequent samples may be analyzed immediately after CCV B.
If time remains on the 12 hour clock after initial calibration sequence	<ul> <li>BFB tunes meet instrument performance criteria.</li> <li>The five initial calibration standards meet initial calibration criteria.</li> <li>CCV A meets closing CCV criteria (but does not meet opening CCV criteria).</li> <li>CCV B meets opening CCV criteria.</li> <li>CCV C meets closing CCV Criteria.</li> </ul>	CCV A does not meet opening criteria, therefore a new BFB tune must be performed, immediately followed by CCV B before a method blank and any samples may be analyzed. In this case, the new 12 hr clock and Analytical Sequence 2 begins with the injection of the new BFB tune.
If more than 12 hrs have elapsed since the most recent initial calibra- tion or closing CCV. OR If the most recent closing CCV was not or could not be used as an opening CCV.	<ul> <li>BFB tunes meet instrument performance criteria.</li> <li>CCV A meets opening CCV criteria.</li> <li>CCV B meets both opening and closing CCV criteria.</li> <li>CCV C meets both opening and closing CCV criteria.</li> </ul>	The requirement of starting the new 12 hour clock for Analytical Sequence 2 with a new BFB tune is waived if CCV B meets opening CCV criteria. If CCV C meets opening CCV criteria, a method blank and subsequent samples may be analyzed immediately after CCV B.

. . . . . . . . . . . . . .

### USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles

### Date: August 2007 SOP HW-34, Revision 1

[ ]

[]

[]

YES NO N/A

If more than 12 hrs have elapsed since the most recent initial calibra- tion or closing CCV OR If the most recent closing CCV was not or could not be used as an opening CCV	<ul> <li>BFB tunes meet instrument performance criteria.</li> <li>CCV A meets opening CCV criteria.</li> <li>CCV B meets closing CCV criteria (but does not meet opening CCV criteria).</li> <li>CCV C meets opening CCV Criteria.</li> <li>CCV D meets both opening and closing CCV criteria.</li> </ul>	CCV B does not meet opening CCV criteria, therefore a new BFB tune must be performed, immediately followed by CCV B before a method blank and any samples may be analyzed. In this case, the new 12 hr clock and Analytical Sequence 2 begins with the injection of the new BFB tune. The requirement of starting the new 12 hr clock for Analytical Sequence 3 with a new BFB tune is waived if CCV D meets opening CCV criteria. If CCV D meets opening criteria, a method blank and subsequent samples may be analyzed after CCV B.
7.4 Have the ion at	bundances been normalized to $m/z$ S	95 [_]
NOTE: All ion abundar	nce ratios must be normalized to r	n/z 95, the nominal

- base peak, even though the ion abundance of m/z 174 may be up to 120% that of m/z 95.
- ACTION: If mass assignment is in error, qualify all associated data as unusable (R).
- 7.5 Have the ion abundance criteria been met for each instrument used?
- ACTION: List all data which do not meet ion abundance criteria (attach a separate sheet).
- ACTION: If ion abundance criteria are not met, professional Judgement may be applied to determine to what extent the data may be utilized.
- 7.6 Are there any transcription/calculation errors between mass lists and Form Vs? (Check at least two values but if errors are found, check more.)
- 7.7 Is the number of significant figures for the reported relative abundances consistent with the number given in the ion abundance criteria column on Form V ?

USEPA Regi Method: CL	on II P/SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles	Date: Augu SOP HW-34, R	st 20 evisi	07 .on 1
		YES	NO	N/A
ACTION	: If large errors exist, take action as specified above.	in section 3.1		
7.8	Is the spectrum of the mass calibration compound acceptable?	[]		
ACTION	: Use professional judgement to determine whether a should be accepted, qualified, or rejected.	associated data		
8.0 <u>Target C</u>	ompound List (TCL) Analytes (Form I)			
8.1	Are the Organic Analysis Data Sheets (Form I) prese header information on each page, for each of the fo	ent with require ollowing:	d	
	a. Samples and/or fractions as appropriate?	[_]		
	b. Regional Control/MS/MSD samples?	[ ]		
	c. Blanks (method, trip, etc)?	<u>[ ]</u>		
8.2	Are the VOA Reconstructed Ion Chromatograms, the maidentified compounds, and the data system printouts included in the sample package for each of the foll	ass spectra for s (Quant Reports owing:	the )	
	a. Samples and/or fractions as appropriate?	[]		
	b. Regional Control/MS/MSD samples?	[ ]		
	c. Blanks (method, trip, etc)?	[]		
ACTION	: If any data are missing, take action specified in	n 3.1 above.		
8. <b>3</b>	Is chromatographic performance acceptable with resp	pect to:		
	Baseline stability?	<u> </u>		
	Resolution?	[]		
	Peak shape?	[_]		
	Full-scale graph (attenuation)?	[]		
	Other:?	[]		

ACTION: Use professional judgement to determine the acceptability of the data.

USEPA Reg Method: C	ion II LP/SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles	Date: SOP HW-3	Augus 4, Re	st 20 evisi	07 .on 1
			YES	NO	N/A
8.4	Are lab-generated standard mass spectra of the ident VOA compounds present for each sample?	ified	[]		
ACTIO	N: If any mass spectra are missing, take action as sp above. If lab does not generate their own standar make note under the "Contract Problems/Non-Complia of the Data Assessment. If spectra are unavailable the reported results.	pecified i rd spectra ance" sect e reject "	n 3.1 , ion R"		
8.5	Is the RRT of each reported compound within $\pm$ 0.06 R units of the standard RRT in the continuing calibrat	RT ion?	[]		
8.6	Are all ions present in the standard mass spectrum a relative intensity greater than 10% also present in sample mass spectrum?	t a the	[]		
8.7	Do sample and standard relative ion intensities agre within ± 20%?	e to	<u>[ ]</u>		
ACTIO	N: Use professional judgement to determine acceptabil If it is determined that incorrect identifications all such data should be rejected (R) or changed to (U) at the calculated detection limit. In order t positively identified, the data must comply with t listed in sections 8.4-8.7 above.	lity of da were mad non-dete to be the criter	nta. le, ected		
ACTIO	N: When sample carry-over is suspected, review section #2 above before determining if instrument cross-con has affected positive compound identifications.	on 6.2/Act ontaminati	ion .on		
9.0 <u>Tentati</u>	vely Identified Compounds (TIC)				
9.1	Are all Tentatively Identified Compound Forms (Form TIC) present? Do listed TICs include scan number or retention time, as well as the estimated "J" and/or qualifier?	I VOA- "JN"	[]		
9.2	Are the mass spectra for the tentatively identified associated "best match" spectra included in the samp each of the following:	compounds le packago	and e for		
	a. Samples and/or fractions as appropriate?		[]		
	b. Blanks?		[]		
	b. Are Alkanes listed in/or part of the Case Narrative?		[]		

USEF Meth	PA Regio lod: CLI	on II ?/SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles	Date: SOP HW-	Augus	st 20 evisi	07 on 1
				YES	NO	N/A
	ACTION	If any TIC data are missing, take action specified	l in 3.1	above.		
	ACTION	Verify "JN" qualifier is present for all chemical having a percent match of greater than or equal 85 labeled "unknown" are qualified with a "J" qualifi	y named %. TIC .er.	TICs s		
	9.3	Are any target compounds (from any fraction) listed TICs? (Example: 1,2-dimethylbenzene is xylene - a VO target analyte - and should not be reported as a TIC	as A .)		<u>[]</u>	
	ACTION	Flag with "R" only target compound detected in and (except blank contamination)	other fr	action.		
	9.4	Are all ions present in the reference mass spectrum relative intensity greater than 10% also present in sample mass spectrum?	with a the	<u>[ ]</u>		
	9.5	Do TICs and "best match" reference spectra relative	ion			
		intensities agree within $\pm$ 20%?		[_]		
	ACTION:	Use professional judgement to determine the accept identifications. If it is determined that an inco tification was made, change its identification to to some less specific identification (example: "C3 benzene") as appropriate.	ability prrect i "unknow substi	of TIC den- n" or tuted		
	Action:	When a compound is not found in any blank, but is a and is a suspected artifact of a common laboratory preservatives or Aldo condensation, the result sho unusable (R). (i.e., common lab contaminants such Siloxanes (m/e 73), diethyl ether, hexane, certain condensation products: 4-hydroxy-4-methyl-2-pentane one and 5,5-dimethyl-2(H)-furanone. Solvent preserv related by-products: cyclohexanone, cyclohexenone, cyclohexenone, chlorocyclohexene, and chlorocycloh	detected contami uld be o freons. one, 4-m vatives: cyclohe exanol.)	l in a s nant, s qualifie m/e 44) Aldol nethyl-2 cycloh exanol, ).	sample solven ed as , 2-pent nexene	t en-2- , and
10.0	Compound	Quantitation and Reported Detection Limits				
	10.1	Are there any transcription/calculation errors in Fo results? (Check at least two positive values. Veri that the correct internal standards, quantitation io and RRFs were used to calculate Form I results.)	rm I fy ns,		<u>[]</u>	
	10.2	Are the CRQLs adjusted to reflect sample dilutions?		[_]		
	ACTION:	If errors are large, take action as specified in s above.	section	3.1		

STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE **USEPA Region II** Date: August 2007 SOP HW-34, Revision 1 Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles YES NO N/A ACTION: When a sample is analyzed at more than one dilution, the lowest CRQLs are used (unless a QC exceedance dictates the use of the higher CRQLs data from the diluted sample). Replace concentrations that exceed the calibration range in the original analysis by crossing out the "E" and its corresponding value on the original Form I and substituting the data from the diluted sample. Specify which Form I is to be used, then draw a red "X" across the entire page of all Form I's not to be used, including any in the data summary package. 11.0 Standards Data (GC/MS) 11.1 Are the reconstructed ion chromatograms, and data system printouts (quant. reports) present for each initial and continuing calibration? [ ] If any calibration standard data are missing, take action ACTION: specified in section 3.1 above. 12.0 GC/MS Initial Calibration (Form VI) 12.1 Are the Initial Calibration Forms (Form VI LCV) present and complete for the volatile fraction at concentrations of 0.5, 1, 5, 10, and 25  $\mu g/\ell$  for non-ketones, 5, 10, 50, 100, and 200 ug/L for ketones. [ ] Note: The initial calibration standards for by Selected Ion Monitoring (SIM) technique are 0.05, 0.1, 0.5, 1.0, and 2.0  $\rm ug/L.$ If any Initial Calibration forms are missing, take action as ACTION: specified in section 3.1 above.

12.2 Are the relative standard deviation (RSD) stable for VOA's over the concentration range of the calibration (i.e., %RSD ≤ 30%, ≤ 40% for poor performers (see table below).

ACTION: Circle all outliers in red.

NOTE: The twenty two (22) poor performers compounds and associated DMCs are listed below. The relative response factor (RRF) for these compounds must be greater than or equal to 0.010. All DMC must meet RRF  $\geq$  0.010.

#### Volatile Compounds Exhibiting Poor Response

USEPA Re	egion II		
Method:	CLP/SOW,	SOM01.2/Trace	Volatiles

Date: August 2007 SOP HW-34, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

[ ]

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Volatile Compounds			
Acetone	1,2-Dibromo-3-chloropropane		
2-Butanone	Isopropylbenzene		
Carbon disulfide	Methyl acetate		
Chloroethane	Methylene chloride		
Chloromethane	Methylcyclohexane		
Cyclohexane	Methyl tert-butyl ether		
1,4-Dioxane	trans-1,2-Dichloroethene		
1,2-Dibromoethane	4-Methyl-2-pentanone		
Dichlorodifluoromethane	2-Hexanone		
cis-1,2-dichloroethene	Trichlorofluoromethane		
1,2-Dichloropropane	1,1,2-Trichloro-1,2,2-trifluoroethane		

- ACTION: If %RSD > 30.0%, (> 40.0% for the poor performers, qualify associated positive results for that analyte "J" (estimated). If %RSD is > 90, flag all non-detects for that analyte "R" (unusable) and positive hits "J".
- NOTE: Analytes previously qualified "U" for blank contamination are still treated as "hits" when qualifying for initial calibration criteria.
  - 12.3 Are any RRFs < 0.050 (< 0.010 for poor performers)?
- ACTION: Circle all outliers in red.
- ACTION: If any  $\overline{RRF}$  values are < 0.05 or < 0.01 for poor performers, qualify associated non-detects unusable (R) and associated positive results estimated (J).
- ACTION: Document in the Data Assessment under Contract Problems/Non-Compliance the analytes that fail %RSD and/or RRF criteria.
- 12.4 Are there any transcription/calculation errors in the reporting of RRFs, RRFs or %RSD values? (Check at least 2 values, but if errors are found, check more.) []

ACTION: Circle errors in red.

USEPA Regio	on II	Da	ate: Aug	gust 20	)07
Method: CLP	<pre>/SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles</pre>	OP	HW-34,	Revisi	ion 1
			YES	S NO	N/A
ACTION:	If errors are large, contact the TOPO to obtain an explanation/resubmittal from the lab, document in Assessment under Contract Problems/Non-Compliance.	the	Data		
13.0 <u>GC/MS Co</u>	ntinuing Calibration Verification (CCV)(Form VII)				
13.1	Are the Continuing Calibration Forms (Form VII) prese and complete for the volatile fraction?	ent	[_]		
13.2	Did the 12 hour clock begin with either the injection BFB or in cases where a closing CCV can be used as an opening CCV for each instrument?	ı of 1	[_]		
ACTION:	If any forms are missing or no continuing calibrat has been analyzed within twelve hours of every sam ask the TOPO to obtain explanation/resubmittal fro laboratory. If continuing calibration data are un flag all associated sample data as unusable (R).	ion ple m tł ava:	standard analysis ne ilable,	1 5,	
13.3	Do any volatile compounds have a % Difference (% D) between the initial RRF and CCV RRF exceedin ± 50% for 1,4-Dioxane, ± 40% for the poor performe or ± 30% for the remaining compounds?	lg ers		<u>[]</u>	
ACTION:	Circle all outliers in red.				
13.4	Do any volatile compounds have a RRF < 0.05 or < 0.05 the poor performers?	L fo	r	. [_]	

- ACTION: Circle all outliers in red.
- Note: Verify that the CCV was run at the required frequency (an opening and closing CCV must be run within 12-hour period) and the CCV was compared to the correct initial calibration. If the mid-point standard from the initial calibration is used as an opening CCV, verify that the result (RRF) of the mid-point standard was compared to the average RRF from the correct initial calibration.
- Note: The closing CCV used to bracket the end of a 12-hour analytical sequence may be used as the opening CCV for the new 12-hour analytical sequence, provided that all the technical acceptance criteria are met for an opening CCV (see table below). If the closing CCV does not meet the technical acceptance criteria for an opening CCV, then a BFB tune followed by an opening CCV is required and the next 12-hour time period begins with the BFB tune.
- Action: Use the following table to qualify data based on the technical acceptance criteria for the opening CCV and closing CCV.

USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles Date: August 2007 SOP HW-34, Revision 1

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

YES NO N/A

Continuing Calibration Verification (CCV) Actions for Trace Volatiles Analyses

Criteria for	Criteria for	Action	
Opening CCV	Closing CCV	Detected Associated Compounds	Non-Detected Associated Compounds
<pre>RRF &lt; 0.010 (poor responders) RRF &lt; 0.050 (all other volatile target compounds)</pre>	RRF < 0.010 (for all volatile target compounds)	J	R
RRF $\geq$ 0.010 (poor responders) RRF $\geq$ 0.050 (for all other compounds)	RRF ≥ 0.010 (for all target volatile compounds)	No	Action
<pre>%D &gt; 40.0 or &lt; -40.0 (poor responders) %D &gt; 30.0 or &lt; -30.0 (all other volatile target compounds)</pre>	%D > 50.0 or < -50.0 (for all volatile target compounds)	J	IJJ
$D \leq 40.0$ or $\geq -40.0$ (poor responders) $D \leq 30.0$ or $\geq -30.0$ (all other volatile target compounds)	$D \leq 50.0 \text{ or } \geq -50.0$ (for all volatile target compounds)	No	Action
Opening CCV not performed at required frequency *	Closing CCV not performed at required frequency *	R	

\* See section 13.2 above

- ACTION: Document in the Data Assessment under Contract Problems/Non-Compliance if more than two of the required analytes failed the above acceptance criteria.
- 13.5 Are there any transcription/calculation errors for the reporting of RRFs, or %D between initial RRFs and continuing RRFs? (Check at least two values but if errors are found, check more.)

[]

- ACTION: Circle errors with red pencil.
- ACTION: If errors are large, notify the TOPO to obtain explanation/resubmittals from the lab. Document errors in the Contract Problems/Non-Compliance section of the Data Assessment.
- Note: All DMCs must meet RRF  $\geq$  0.010. No qualification of the data is necessary on the DMC RRF and RSD/ Diff data <u>alone</u>. However, use professional judgment to evaluate the DMC RRF and RSD/ Diff data in conjunction with the DMC recoveries to determine the need for qualification of data.

USEI Metł	PA Regionod: CL	on II P/SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles	Date: SOP HW-	Augu 34, R	st 20 evisi	07 .on 1
				YES	NO	N/A
14.0	<u>Interna</u>	l Standard (Form VIII)				
	14.1	Were the internal standard area counts for every sam and blank within the range of 60.0% and 140.0% of it response in the most recent opening CCV standard calibration?	uple :s	r 1		
		If no, were affected sample reanalyzed?				
	ACTION	: 1. Circle all outliers with red pencil.				
	14.2	Are the retention times of the internal standards in sample or blanks within ±20 seconds from the RT of t internal standard in the 12-hour associated calibrat standard (opening CCV or mid-point standard from ini calibration)?	1 :he :ion .tial	[_]		
	Action	: Use the following table to qualify the data				

#### INTERNAL STANDARDS ACTIONS FOR TRACE VOLATILES

	ACTION		
Criteria	Detected Non-d Associated Asso Compounds * Comp		
Area counts > 140% of 12-hour standard (opening CCV or mid-point standard from initial calibration)	J	No Action	
Area counts < 60% of 12-hour standard (opening CCV or mid-point standard from initial calibration)	J	R	
Area counts $\geq$ 60% but $\leq$ 140% of 12-hour standard (Opening CCV or mid-point standard from initial calibration)	No Action		
RT difference > 20.0 seconds between samples and 12-hour standard (Opening CCV or mid-point standard from initial calibration)	R **		
RT difference < 20.0 seconds between samples and 12-hour standard (Opening CCV or mid-point standard from initial calibration)	No Action		

\* For volatile compounds associated to each internal standard, see Table 3 - Trace Volatile Target Compounds and Deuterated Monitoring Compounds with Corresponding Internal Standards for Quantitation in SOM01.1, Exhibit D, available at:

Http://www.epa.gov/superfund/programs/clp/som1.htm

### USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles

Date: August 2007 SOP HW-34, Revision 1

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

- \*\* Examine the chromatographic profile for that sample to determine if any false positives or negatives exist. For shifts of a large magnitude, the reviewer may consider partial or total rejection of the data for that sample fraction. Detects should not need to be qualified as unusable "R" if the mass spectral are met.
  - NOTE: <u>Contract Requirements</u>: The SOM (section 11.5.1 page D-37/Trace VOA) states that any sample which fails the acceptance criteria for IS response must be reanalyzed.
  - ACTION: Document in the Data Assessment under Contract Problems/Non-Compliance any sample(s) which failed the above IS acceptance criteria.

#### 15.0 Field Duplicates

- 15.1
   Were any field duplicates submitted for Trace

   Concentration VOA analysis?
   []
- ACTION: Compare the reported results for field duplicates and calculate the relative percent difference.
- ACTION: Any gross variation between duplicate results must be addressed in the reviewer narrative. If large differences exist, contact the TOPO to confirm identification of field duplicates with the sampler.

USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles Date: August 2007 SOP HW-34, Revision 1

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

#### Definitions

BFB - bromofluorobenzene CCS - contract compliance screening CLASS - Contract Laboratory Analytical Services Support CLP - Contract Laboratory Program CRQL - Contract Required Quantitation Limit GC/MS - gas chromatography/mass spectroscopy kg - kilogram µg - microgram ℓ - liter ml - milliliter QC - quality control RAS - Routine Analytical Services RIC - reconstructed ion chromatogram RPD - relative percent difference RRF - relative response factor RRF - average relative response factor (from initial calibration) RRT - relative retention time RSD - relative standard deviation RT - retention time RSCC - Regional Sample Control Center SDG - sample delivery group SOP - standard operating procedure SOW - Statement of Work TCL - Target Compound List TCLP - Toxicity Characteristics Leachate Procedure TIC - tentatively identified compound TPO - technical project officer VOA - volatile organic acid VTSR - validated time of sample receipt TOPO - Task Order Project Officer

USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Trace Volatiles Date: August 2007 SOP HW-34, Revision 1

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

#### References

- 1. USEPA Contract Laboratory Program of Work for Organic Analysis Multi-Media, Multi-Concentration, SOW/CLPSOM01.1, October 2004
- 2. National Functional Guidelines for Superfund Organic Methods Data Review January 2005

SOP HW-35 Revision 1 August 2007 SOP NO. HW-35/SVOA Data Validation **USEPA** Contract Laboratory Program Statement of Work for Organic Analysis of Low/Medium Concentration of Semivolatile Organic Compounds SOM01.2 Date: Prepared by: George Karras, Chemist Hazardous Waste Support Section Date: 10/3/07 Peer Reviewed by: Unel woner Russell Arnone, Chemist Hazardous Waste Support Section 10/8/07 Date: Concurred by: nous Linda uel, Chief Hazardous Waste Support Section MINGA Approved by: Date: Robert Runyon, Chief Hazardous Waste Support Branch Annual Review Reviewed by: Date: Name Reviewed by: Date: Name

# SOM01.2/Low/Medium Semivolatiles SOP HW-35 EPA/Region II

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRO	ODUCTION	. <u>1</u>
	Scope and Applicability	. <u>1</u>
	Summary	. <u>1</u>
	Data Qualifiers	. <u>1</u>
	Lab Qualifiers	. <u>2</u>
	Reviewer Qualifications	. <u>2</u>
PACKA	AGE COMPLETENESS AND DELIVERABLES	. <u>3</u>
	1. <u>Chain of Custody and Sampling Trip Reports</u>	. <u>3</u>
	2. <u>Data Completeness and Deliverables</u>	. <u>3</u>
	3. <u>Cover Letter SDG Narrative</u>	. 4
	4. Data Validation Checklist	. <u>5</u>
PART	A: VOA ANALYSES	. 5
	1. Sample Conditions/Problems	. 5
	2. Holding Times	. 5
	3. Deuterated Monitoring Compound (DMC) Recovery (Form II	) 6
	4. Matrix Spike/Matrix Spike Duplicate Recovery (Form III	)11
	5. Method Blanks (Form IV)	12
	6. Contamination	13
	7. GC/MS Instrument Performance Check (Form V)	15
	8. Target Compound List (TCL) Analytes (Form I)	18
	9. Tentatively Identified Compounds (TIC)	20
	10. Compound Quantitation and Reported Detection Limits	21
	11. Standards Data (GC/MS)	21
	12 GC/MS Initial Calibration (Form VI)	21
	13. GC/MS Continuing Calibration Verification (CCV) (Form	
	VII)	24
	14. Internal Standard (Form VIII)	26
	15. <u>Field Duplicates</u>	27
	Definitions	<u>28</u>
	References	<u>29</u>

#### INTRODUCTION

### Scope and Applicability

This SOP offers detailed guidance in evaluating laboratory data generated according to the method in the "USEPA Contract Laboratory Program Statement of Work for Organics Analysis Multi-Media, Multi-Concentration, SOM01.1, May 2005". The validation procedures and actions discussed in this document are based on the requirements set forth in the "USEPA Contract Laboratory Program National Functional Guidelines for Superfund Organic Methods Data Review, January 2005". This document attempts to cover technical problems specific to low/Medium concentration of semivolatile compounds. Situations may arise where data limitations must be assessed based on the reviewer's own professional judgement.

In addition to technical requirements, contractual requirements may also be covered in this document. While it is important that instances of contract non-compliance be addressed in the Data Assessment, the technical criteria are always used to qualify the analytical data.

### Summary

To ensure a thorough evaluation of each result in a data case, the reviewer must complete the checklist within this SOP, answering specific questions while performing the prescribed "ACTIONS" in each section. Qualifiers (or flags) are applied to questionable or unusable results as instructed. The data qualifiers discussed in this document are as follows:

### Data Qualifiers

- U The analyte was analyzed for, but was not detected above the reported sample quantitation limit.
- J The analyte was positively identified; the associated numerical value is the approximate concentration of the analyte in the sample.
- N The analysis indicates the presence of an analyte for which there is presumptive evidence to make a "tentative identification."
- JN The analysis indicates the presence of an analyte that has been "tentatively identified" and the associated numerical value represents its approximate concentration.

- UJ The analyte was not detected above the reported sample quantitation limit. However, the reported quantitation limit is approximate and may or may not represent the actual limit of quantitation necessary to accurately and precisely measure the analyte in the sample.
- R The sample results are rejected due to serious deficiencies in the ability to analyze the sample and meet quality control criteria. The presence or absence of the analyte cannot be verified.

### Lab Qualifiers:

- D The positive value is the result of an analysis at a secondary dilution factor.
- B The analyte is present in the associated method blank as well as in the sample. This qualifier has a different meaning when validating inorganic data.
- E The concentration of this analyte exceeds the calibration range of the instrument.
- P Pesticide/Aroclor target analytes when the % Difference between the analyte concentrations obtained from the two dissimilar GC columns is greater than 25%.

The reviewer must prepare a detailed data assessment to be submitted along with the completed SOP checklist. The Data Assessment must list all data qualifications, reasons for qualifications, instances of missing data and contract noncompliance.

### Reviewer Qualifications:

Data reviewers must possess a working knowledge of the USEPA Statement of Work SOM01.2 and National Functional Guidelines mentioned above.

USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.	2/Semivolatiles	Date: SOP HW-35/SVOA	Augus , Revi	st 200 Lsion	07 1	
·			YES	NO	N/A	
Dacr	AGE COMPLETENESS AND DE	71.TVFDAB1.FG				
FACK	AGE COMPLETENESS AND DE					
CASE NUMBER:	LAB:					
SITE NAME:	SDG No(s)	.:				
1.0 <u>Chain of Custody an</u>	d Sampling Trip Reports	3				
1.1 Are the Traf present for	fic Reports/Chain-of-Cu all samples?	stody Records	[]			
ACTION: If no, co replaceme from the	ntact RSCC, or the TOPC nt of missing or illegi lab.	) to obtain ble copies				
1.2 Is the Sampl samples?	ing Trip Report present	for all	[]			
ACTION: If no, con obtain the contractor	tact either RSCC or ask necessary information	the TOPO to from the prime				
2.0 <u>Data Completeness a</u>	nd Deliverables					
2.1 Have any mis and added to	sing deliverables been the data package?	received		<u>[]</u>		
ACTION: Contact th resubmitta If lab can review of Problems/N Assessment	e TOPO to obtain an exp l of any missing delive not provide them, note the data package in the on-compliance section o	planation or erables from the the effect on the Contract of the Data	lab. 1e			
2.2 Was CLASS CC package?	S checklist included wi	th the	[_]			
USEPA Metho	Regio d: CLI	on II P/SOW, SOM01.2/Semivolatiles SOP HW-	Date: -35/SVOA,	Augus , Rev:	st 20 ision	07 1
----------------	-----------------	--	-------------------------------	-----------------	----------------	---------
				YES	NO	N/A
	2.3	Are there any discrepancies between the Tra Reports/Chain-of-Custody Records, Sampling Report and Sample Tags?	affic Trip		[_]	
	ACTION	N: If yes, contact the TOPO to obtain an exp resubmittal of any missing deliverables f laboratory.	lanatior from the	n or		
3.0 <u>C</u>	over I	Letter SDG Narrative				
	3.1	Is the SDG Narrative or Cover Letter Preser	ıt?	[]		
	3.2	Are case number, SDG number and contract nu contained in the SDG Narrative or cover let (see SOW, Exhibit B, section 2.5.1)? EPA sample numbers in the SDG, detailed documentation of any quality control, sample shipment, and/or analytical problems encour in processing the samples? Corrective action	umber ter le, itered			
		taken?		[]		
	3.3	Does the Narrative contain the following information SOM01.1, page B-12, section 2.5 column used, storage of samples, case#, SDC analytical problems, and discrepancies bet field and lab weights.	5.1)? 3#, :ween	[_]		
	3.5	Did the contractor record the temperature of cooler on the Form DC-1, Item 9 - Cooler Temperature, and in the SDG Narrative?	of the			
ACTIO	3.6 N:	Does the Case Narrative contain the "verbat statement (page B-12, section 2.5.1 of the If "No", to any question in this section, contact the TOPO to obtain necessary resubmittals. If unavailable, document under the Contract Problems/ Non-Compliance section of the Data Assessme	im" SOM)?			

USE Mot	PA Reg	Jion II Date T.P/SOW SOM01 2/Semivolatiles SOP HW-35/SVO	: Augu	st 20 ision	07
			YES	NO	N/A
4.0	<u>Data</u>	Validation Checklist			
	4.1	Check the package for the following (see SOM repo requirements, section 2.1, page B-10):	rting		
		a. Is the package paginated in ascending order starting from the SDG narrative?	[]		
		b. Are all forms and copies legible?	[]		
		c. Assembled in the order set forth in the SOW?	[]		
		d. Semivolatiles Data present?	[_]		

### PART A: Low/Medium Semivolatile Analyses

### 1.0 <u>Sample Conditions/Problems</u>

- 1.1 Do the Traffic Reports/Chain-of-Custody Records, Sampling Trip Report or Lab Narrative indicate any problems with sample receipt, condition of samples, analytical problems or special circumstances affecting the quality of the data? \_\_\_\_\_ [\_] \_\_\_
- ACTION: If samples were not iced or the ice was melted upon arrival at the laboratory and the temperature of the cooler was > 10° C, then flag all positive results with a "J" and all non-detects "UJ".

### 2.0 Holding Times

- 2.1 Have any SVOA technical holding times, determined from date of collection to date of analysis, been exceeded?
- 2.2 Preservation: <u>Aqueous</u> and <u>Non-aqueous</u> samples must be cooled at 4°C ± 2°C.

<u>[]</u>

USEPA Region II		Date: August 2007
Method: CLP/SOW,	SOM01.2/Semivolatiles	SOP HW-35/SVOA, Revision 1
		YES NO N/A

Action: Qualify sample results according to the following table.

Holding Time Actions for Low/Medium Semivolatile Analyses

			Action		
Matrix	Preserved	Criteria	Detected Associated Compounds	Non-Detected Associated Compounds	
	No	<pre>&lt; 7 days (extraction) &lt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	*٦	UJ *	
Aqueous	No	> 7 days (extraction) > 40 days (analysis)	J	UJ	
	Yes	<pre>&lt; 7 days (extraction) &lt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	days (extraction) No qualification 0 days (analysis)		
	Yes	<pre>&gt; 7 days (extraction) &gt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	J	UJ	
	Yes/No	Grossly Exceeded	J	R	
	No	≤ 14 days (extraction) ≤ 40 days (analysis)	*٦	UJ *	
Non-aqueous	No	<pre>&gt; 14 days (extraction) &gt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	J	UJ	
	Yes	≤ 14 days (extraction) ≤ 40 days (analysis)	No qualification		
	Yes	<pre>&gt; 14 days (extraction) &gt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	J	IJJ	
	Yes/No	Grossly Exceeded	J	R	

<sup>\*</sup> Only if cooler temperature exceeds  $10^{\circ}$  C (see ACTION in Section 1.1 above). No action required if temperature <  $10^{\circ}$  C.

# 3.0 <u>Deuterated Monitoring Compound (DMC) Recovery (Form II)</u>

3.1 Are the Semivolatile DMC Recovery Summaries (Form II) present?

[\_] \_\_\_\_

STANDARD	OPERATING	PROCEDURE	•	•	

USEP# Metho	A Regio d: CLI	on II ?/SOW, SOM01.2/Semivolatiles	Date: SOP HW-35/SVOA	Augus	st 20 ision	07 1
				YES	NO	N/A
	ACTION	N: Contact the TOPO to obtain an expl from the lab. If missing delivera unavailable, document the effect : Assessment.	lanation/resubm ables are in the Data	ittal		
	3.2	Were outliers marked correctly with	an asterisk?	[]		
	ACTIO	N: Circle all outliers in red.				
	3.3	Were more than four of the sixteen Deuterated Monitoring Compounds (DMG recoveries outside their correspond:	(16) C's) ing limits?		[_]	
		If yes, were samples re-analyzed?		[]		
		Were method blanks re-analyzed?		[_]		
Note:	Up to % rea	o four (4) DMCs per sample may fail <sup>s</sup> coveries must be > zero.	% recovery but	all		

ACTION: If any DMC is outside the required limits, qualify their associated target compounds (See Table below) as follows:

### SEMIVOLATILE DMC AND THEIR ASSOCIATED TARGET COMPOUNDS

Phenol-d5	2-Chlorophenol-d4	<u>2-Nitrophenol-d4</u>
Benzaldehyde Phenol	2-Chlorophenol	Isophorone 2-nitrophenol
<pre>Bis(2- Chloroethyl)ether-d8 bis(2-Chloroethyl)ether 2,2'oxybis(1- Chloropropane bis(2- Chloroethoxy)methane</pre>	<u>4-Methylphenol-d8</u> 2-Methylphenol 4-Methylphenol 2,4 Dimethylphenol	<pre>4-Chloroaniline-d4 4-Chloroaniline Hexachloro     cyclopentadiene 3,3'Dichlorobenzidine</pre>

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

USEPA Re	egion II	
Method:	CLP/SOW,	SOM01.2/Semivolatiles

Date: August 2007

SOP HW-35/SVOA, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

<pre>Nitrobenzene-d8 Acetophenone N-Nitro-di-n-     propylamine Hexachloroethane Nitrobenzene 2,6-Dinitrotoluene 2,4-Dinitrotoluene N-Nitrodiphenylamine</pre>	<pre>2,4-Dichlorophenol-d3 2,4-Dichlorophenol Hexaclorobutadiene 4-Chloro-3-methylphenol 2,4,6-Trichlorophenol 1,2,4,5-Trichlorophenol 1,2,4,5-Tetrachloro- benzene Pentachlorophenol 2,3,4,6-Tetrachloro- phenol</pre>	Dimethylphthalate-d6 Caprolactam 1,1'-Biphenyl Dimethylphthalate Diethylphthalate Di-n-butylphthalate Butylbenzylphthalate bis(2-Ethylhexyl)- phthalate Di-n-octylphthalate
<pre>Fluorene-d10 Dibenzofuran Fluorene 4-Chlorophenyl-     phenylether 4-Bromophenyl-     phenylether Carbazole</pre>	Anthracene-d10 Hexachlorobenzene Atrazine Phenanthrene Anthracene	<b>Pyrene-d10</b> Fluoranthene Pyrene Benzo(a)anthracene Chrysene
Acenaphthylene-d8 Naphthalene 2-Methylphthalene 2-Chlorophthalene Acenapthylene Acenaphthene	<b>4-Nitrophenol-d4</b> 2-Nitroaniline 3-Nitroaniline 2,4-Dinitrophenol 4-Nitrophenol 4-Nitroaniline	<pre>Benzo(a)pyrene-d12 Benzo(b)flur0anthene Benzo(k)flur0anthene Benzo(a)pyrene Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene Dibenzo(a,h)anthracene Benzo(g,h,i)pertlene</pre>
4,6-Dinitro-2- methylphenol-d2 4,6-Dinitro-2- methylphenol		

# Semivolatile Deuterated Monitoring Compound Recovery Limits for Selective Ion Monitoring (SIM) and the Associated Target Compounds

Fluoranthene-d10 (DMC)	2-Methylnaphthalene-d10 (DMC)	
Fluoranthene	Naphthalene	

USEPA Re	egion II	
Method:	CLP/SOW,	SOM01.2/Semivolatiles

Date: August 2007

SOP HW-35/SVOA, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

Pyrene	2-Methylnaphthalene
Benzo(a)anthracene	Acenaphthylene
Chrysene	Acenaphthene
Benzo(b)fluoranthene	Fluorene
Benzo(k)fluoranthene	Pentachlorophenol
Benzo(a)pyrene	Phenanthrene
Indeno(1,2,3-cd)pyrene	Anthracene
Bibenzo(a,h)anthracene	
Benzo(g,h,i)perylene	

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

### SEMIVOLATILE DEUTERATED MONITORING COMPOUND RECOVERY LIMITS

DMC	Recovery Limits (%) for Water Samples	Recovery Limits (%) for Soil samples
Phenol-d5	39 - 106	17 - 103
Bis-(2-chloroethyl) ether-d8	40 - 105	12 - 9
2-Chlorophenol-d4	41 - 106	13 - 101
4-Methylphenol-d8	25 - 111	8 - 100
Nitrobenzene-d5	43 - 108	16 - 103
2-Nitrophenol-d4	40 - 108	16 - 104
2,4-Dichlorophenol-d3	37 - 105	23 - 104
4-Chloroaniline-d4	1 - 145	1 - 145
Dimethylphthalate-d6	47 - 114	43 - 111
Acenaphthalate-d8	41 - 107	20 - 97
4-Nitrophenol-d4	33 - 116	16 - 166
Fluorene-d10	42 - 111	40 - 108
4,6-Dintro-2-methylphenol-d2	22 - 104	1 - 121

USEPA Re	egion II	
Method:	CLP/SOW,	SOM01.2/Semivolatiles

Date: August 2007

N/A

SOP HW-35/SVOA, Revision 1

YES NO

Anthracene-d10	44 - 110	22 - 98
Pyrene-d10	52 - 119	51 - 120
Benzo(a)pyrene-d12	32 - 121	43 - 111
Fluoranthene-d10 (SIM)	5 150	50 - 150
2-Methylnaphthalene-d10 (SIM)	50 - 150	50 - 150

### Deuterated Monitoring Compound Recovery Action for Semivolatiles

	Action			
Criteria	Detected Associated Compounds	Non-Detected Associated Compounds		
<pre>%R &gt; Upper Acceptance Limit</pre>	J	No qualification		
%R < Lower acceptance Limit	J	UJ		
Lower Acceptance <u>&lt;</u> %R <u>&lt;</u> Upper Acceptance Limit	No qu	alification		

NOTE: Use the above table to qualify SVOA data including SIM analysis.

NOTE: As per SOM, any sample which has more than 4 DMC's outside the limits, it must be reanalyzed (SOM sec. 11.4.3.1 pg. D-49/Low Medium SVOA).

<u>Blank analysis have DMCs out of specification</u>: Basic concern is whether the blank problems represent an isolated problem with the blank alone or whether there is a fundamental problem with the analytical process. For example, if one or more samples in the batch show acceptable DMC recoveries, the reviewer may choose to consider the blank problem to be an isolated occurrence.

ACTION: Note in the Data Assessment under Contract Problems/ Non-Compliance if the Lab did not perform reanalysis and reviewer's judgment regarding blank problem.

USEPA Regior Method: CLP/	Date: August 2007 SOW, SOM01.2/Semivolatiles SOP HW-35/SVOA, Revision 1
	YES NO N/2
3.4	Are there any transcription/calculation errors [ ]
ACTION:	If large errors exist, ask the TOPO to obtain an explanation/resubmittal from the lab, make any necessary corrections and note errors in the data assessment.
Note:	DMC recovery limits criteria and qualification apply to samples diluted 5X and less. For samples diluted greater than 5X, recovery criteria does not apply Because it is assumed DMC is diluted below the quantitation range.
4.0 <u>Matrix s</u> Note: I	Spike/Matrix Spike Duplicate Recovery (Form III) Data for MS/MSD will not be present unless requested.
4.1	Are the MS/MSD Recovery Forms (Form III BNA) present?
4.2	Was the MS/MSD analyzed at the required frequency (once per SDG, or every 20 samples, whichever is more frequent)?
ACTION:	If any MS/MSD data are missing, take action as specified in section 3.1 above.
ACTION:	No action is taken on MS/MSD data <u>alone.</u> However, using professional judgement, the validator may use the MS and MSD results in conjunction with other QC criteria and determine the need for some qualification of the data. If Any MS/MSD % recovery or RPD is out of specification, qualify data to include the consideration of the existence of interference in the raw data. Consideration include, but not limited to the following "Action":
Matri	x Spike/Matrix Spike Duplicate Action for Semivolatiles
	Action

	ACTION			
Criteria	Detected Spike Compounds	Non-detected Spike Compounds		

# USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Semivolatiles

Date: August 2007

SOP HW-35/SVOA, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

%R or RPD > Upper Acceptance Limit	J	No qualification
<pre>%R &lt; Lower Acceptance Limit</pre>	J	Use Professional Judgment
Lower Acceptance Limit <u>&lt;</u> %R; RPD <u>&lt;</u> Upper Acceptance Limit	No qualifica	ation required

Note: If it can be determined that the results of the MS/MSD affects only the sample spiked, limit qualification to only this sample. However, use professional judgment when it is determined through the MS/MSD results that the laboratory is having systematic problem in the analysis of one or more analytes that affect all associated samples.

### 5.0 <u>Method Blanks (Form IV)</u>

5.1	Is the Semivolatile Method Blank Summary (Form IV BNA) present for aqueous and soil samples?	<u>[]</u>
5.2	<u>Frequency of Analysis</u> : For the analysis of SVOA TCL compounds, has a method blank been analyzed for each SDG or every 20 samples, whichever is more frequent?	<u> </u>
5.3	Has a SVOA method blank been analyzed after the calibration standards.	<u>[]</u>
5.4	No target compound concentration may exceed the upper limit of the initial calibration. Did the laboratory perform dilution on compounds exceeding the initial calibration upper limit.	<u>[]</u>
ACTIC	N: If any method blank data is missing or dilution not done, notify the TOPO to obtain resubmittals	was s or an

- not done, notify the TOPO to obtain resubmittals or a explanation from the lab. If method blank data are unavailable, the reviewer may use professional judgement, or substitute field blank or trip blank data for missing method blank data.
- 5.5 <u>Chromatography</u>: Review the blank raw data chromatogram (RICs), quant. Reports or data system printout and spectra. Is the

USEP Meth	PA Regio lod: CLI	on II P/SOW, SOM01.2/Semivolatiles SOP HW-	Date: A -35/SVOA,	August Revis	200 200	7 1
			2	ZES I	<u>NO</u>	N/A
		chromatographic performance (baseline stabi acceptable for each instrument?	llity) [			
	ACTIO	N: Use professional judgement to determine the effect on the data.				
	5.6	The validator should verify that the correct identification scheme for EPA blanks was us page B-39, section 3.3.7.3 for more information	t sed. (See ation.)	e SOM		
		Was the correct identification scheme used all SVOA blanks?	for			
	ACTIO	N: Contact the TOPO to obtain corrections fr or make the necessary corrections. Docum "Contract Problems/Non-Compliance section Assessment all corrections made by the va	com the la ment in th n of the I alidator.	ab, 1e Data		
	5.8	Are all detected hits for target compounds method, and field blanks less than the CRQI	in _? [			
		Exception: Bis(2-ethylhexyl)phthalate must 5X times their respective CRQLs listed in t	be less t the method	chan 1.		
	ACTIO	N: If no, an explanation and laboratory's co actions must be addressed in the case nar the narrative contains no explanation, th note in the Contract Problems/Non-Complia of the Data Assessment.	orrective rative. Nen make a Ance secti	If a lon		
6.0	Contam:	ination				
	NOTE:	"Water blanks", "drill blanks", and distill blanks" are validated like any other sample used to qualify data. Do not confuse them QC blanks discussed below.	led water and are with the	e <u>not</u> other		
	Note:	These limits are <u>not</u> advisory.				

6.1 Do any method blanks contain positive SVOA results (TCL and/or TICs)?

\_\_\_\_ [\_] \_\_\_\_

USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Semivolatiles			:	SOP HV	Date: N-35/SVOA	Augu A, Rev	st 20 ision	07 1	
						•	YES	NO	N/A
6.2	2 Do any result	y field/rinse ts (including	blanks h TICs)?	ave posit:	ive SV	JOA		[]	

- NOTE: All field blank results associated with a particular group of samples (may exceed one per case) must be used to qualify data. Blanks may not be qualified because of contamination in another blank. Field blanks must be qualified for system monitoring compound, instrument performance criteria, spectral or calibration QC problems.
- ACTION: Follow the directions in the table below to qualify TCL results due to contamination. Use the largest value from all the associated blanks. If any blanks are grossly contaminated (i.e., saturated peaks by GC/MS) all associated sample data should be qualified unusable (R).

Blank Type	Blank Result	Sample Result	Action for Samples
	Detects	Not detected	No qualification required
	< CRQL *	< CRQL *	Report CRQL value with a U
		$\geq$ CRQL *	No qualification required
	= CRQL *	< CRQL *	Report CRQL value with a U
Method, Field		≥ CRQL *	No qualification required
		< CRQL *	Report CRQL value with a U
	> CRQL *	<u>CRQL</u> * and < blank contamination	Report concentration of sample with a U
		<u>&gt;</u> CRQL* and <u>&gt;</u> blank contamination	No qualification required
	Gross contamination	Detects	Qualify results as unusable R
	TIC: aqueous	< 5x blank value	R

### Blank Action for Semivolatile Analyses

USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Semivolatiles			Da SOP HW-35/S	ite: Augus SVOA, Rev:	st 20 ision	07 1
				YES	NO	N/A
	TIC: non-aqueous	< 5x blank value		R		
* 5x the CRQI	for bis(2-ethylhexyl)Phth	alate				

- NOTE: Analytes qualified "U" for blank contamination are treated as "hits" when qualifying for calibration criteria.
- Note: When applied as described in the table above, the contaminant concentration in the blank are multiplied by the sample dilution factor.
- 6.3 Are there field/rinse/equipment blanks associated with every sample?
- ACTION: Note in data assessment that there is no associated field/rinse/equipment blank.

Exception: samples taken from a drinking water tap do not have associated field blanks.

[]

[]

[]

### 7.0 GC/MS Instrument Performance Check (Form V)

- 7.1 Are the GC/MS Instrument Performance Check Forms (Form V) present for decafluorotriphenylphosphine (DFTPP)?
- 7.2 Are the enhanced bar graph spectrum and mass/charge (m/z) listing for the DFTPP provided for each twelve hour shift?
- 7.3 Did the 12-hour clock begin with either the injection of DFTPP, or in cases where a closing continuing calibration (CCV) was used as an opening CCV?

Listed below are some, but not necessarily all, examples of acceptable analytical sequences incorporating the use of the opening/closing CCV. Use these examples as a guide for possible analytical sequences that can be expected. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

# USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Semivolatiles

# Date: August 2007 SOP HW-35/SVOA, Revision 1

OF HW-35/SVOA, REVISION I

YES NO N/A

Conditions for When Example Sequence is Appropriate:	Acceptable Criteria That Must be Met:	Notes:
If time remains on the 12 hour clock after initial calibration sequence	<ul> <li>DFTPP tunes meet instrument performance criteria.</li> <li>The five initial calibration standards meet initial calibration criteria.</li> <li>CCV A meets both opening and closing CCV criteria</li> <li>CCV B meets closing CCV criteria.</li> </ul>	The requirement of starting the new 12-hr clock for Analytical Sequence 2 with a new DFTPP tune is waived if CCV A meets opening CCV criteria. If CCV B meets opening CCV criteria, a method blank and subsequent samples may be analyzed immediately after CCV B.
If time remains on the 12 hour clock after initial calibration sequence	<ul> <li>DFTPP tunes meet instrument performance criteria.</li> <li>The five initial calibration standards meet initial calibration criteria.</li> <li>CCV A meets closing CCV criteria (but does not meet opening CCV criteria).</li> <li>CCV B meets opening CCV criteria.</li> <li>CCV C meets closing CCV Criteria.</li> </ul>	CCV A does not meet opening criteria, therefore a new DFTPP tune must be performed, immediately followed by CCV B before a method blank and any sample may be analyzed. In this case, the new 12 hr clock and Analytical Sequence 2 begins with the injection of the new DFTPP tune.
If more than 12 hrs have elapsed since the most recent initial calibra- tion or closing CCV. OR If the most recent closing CCV was not or could not be used as an opening CCV.	<ul> <li>DFTPP tunes meet instrument performance criteria.</li> <li>CCV A meets opening CCV criteria.</li> <li>CCV B meets both opening and closing CCV criteria.</li> <li>CCV C meets both opening and closing CCV criteria.</li> </ul>	The requirement of starting the new 12 hour clock for Analytical Sequence 2 with a new DFTPP tune is waived if CCV B meets opening CCV criteria. If CCV C meets opening CCV criteria, a method blank and subsequent samples may be analyzed immediately after CCV B.

USEPA Re	egion II	
Method:	CLP/SOW,	SOM01.2/Semivolatiles

### Date: August 2007 SOP HW-35/SVOA, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

If more than 12 hrs have elapsed since the most recent initial calibra- tion or closing CCV	<ul> <li>DFTPP tunes meet instrument performance criteria.</li> <li>CCV A meets opening CCV criteria.</li> </ul>	CCV B does not meet opening CCV criteria, therefore a new DFTPP tune must be performed, immediately followed by CCV B before a method blank
OR If the most recent closing CCV was not or could not be used as an opening CCV	<ul> <li>CCV B meets closing CCV criteria (but does not meet opening CCV criteria).</li> <li>CCV C meets opening CCV Criteria.</li> <li>CCV D meets both opening and closing CCV criteria.</li> </ul>	and any samples may be analyzed. In this case, the new 12 hr clock and Analytical Sequence 2 begins with the injection of the new DFTPP tune. The requirement of starting the new 12 hr clock for Analytical Sequence 3 with a new DFTPP tune is waived if CCV D meets opening CCV criteria. If CCV D
		method blank and subsequent samples may be analyzed after CCV B.

. . . . . . . . . . . . .

- 7.4 Have the ion abundances been normalized to m/z 198?
- []

[]

- NOTE: All ion abundance ratios must be normalized to m/z 198, the nominal base peak, even though the ion abundance of m/z 442 may be up to 100% that of m/z 198.
- ACTION: If mass assignment is in error, qualify all associated data as unusable (R).
- 7.5 Have the ion abundance criteria been met for each instrument used?
- ACTION: If ion abundance criteria are not met, professional Judgement to determine to what extent the data may be utilized.
- NOTE: Guidelines to aid in the application of professional judgment in evaluating ion abundance criteria are discussed below:
- a. Some of the most critical factors in the DFTPP criteria are the non-instrument specific requirements that are also not unduly affected by the location of the spectrum on the chromatographic profile. The m/z ratios for 198/199 and 442/443 are critical. These ratios are based on the natural abundance of carbon 12 and carbon 13 and should always be met. Similarly, the relative abundance of m/z 68, 70, 197, and 441 indicate the condition of the instrument and the suitability of the resolution adjustment. Note that all of the foregoing abundance relate to adjacent ions; they are relatively insensitive to differences in instrument design and position of the spectrum on the chromatographic profile.

USEPA Region II		Date: Augu	ıst 20	07
Method: CLP/SOW,	SOM01.2/Semivolatiles	SOP HW-35/SVOA, Rev	vision	1
		YES	NO	N/A

- b. For the ions at m/z 51, 127, and 275, the actual relative abundance is not as critical. For instance, if m/z 275 has 80.0% relative abundance (criteria 10.0-60.0%) and other criteria are met, the deficiency is minor.
- c. The relative abundance of m/z 365 is an indicator of suitable instrument zero adjustment. If relative abundance for m/z 365 is zero, minimum detection limits may be affected. On the other hand, if m/z 365 is present, but < 0.75% minimum abundance criteria, the deficiency is not as serious.

[ ]

[ ]

[ ]

- 7.6 Are there any transcription/calculation errors between mass lists and Form Vs? (Check at least two values but if errors are found, check more.)
- 7.7 Is the number of significant figures for the reported relative abundances consistent with the number given in the ion abundance criteria column on Form V ?
- ACTION: If large errors exist, take action as specified in section 3.1 above.
- 7.8 Is the spectrum of the mass calibration compound acceptable?
- ACTION: Use professional judgement to determine whether associated data should be accepted, qualified, or rejected.

Note: The requirement to analyze the instrument performance check solution is optional when analysis of Polynuclear Hydrocarbon (PAHs)/pentachlorophenol is to be performed by the Selected Ion Monitoring (SIM) technique.

#### 8.0 Target Compound List (TCL) Analytes (Form I)

8.1	Are the Organic Analysis Data Sheets (Form I) present with re header information on each page, for each of the following:	equired
	a. Samples and/or fractions as appropriate?	<u> </u>
	b. Regional Control/MS/MSD samples?	<u> </u>
	c. Blanks (method, field, etc)?	<u> </u>
8.2	Are the SVOA Reconstructed Ion Chromatograms, the mass spect the identified compounds, and the data system printouts (Quan Reports) included in the sample package for each of the fol	ra for nt lowing:

a.	Samples a	and/or	fractions	as	appropriate?	[]	 
b.	Regional	Contro	ol/MS/MSD ;	samp	ples?	[]	 

USEPA Regio Method: CLE	on II ?/SOW, SOM01.2/Semivolatiles SOP 1	Date: HW-35/SVOA,	Augus Revi	st 200 sion	07 1
		•	YES	NO	N/A
	c. Blanks (method, field, etc)?		[]		
ACTION:	If any data are missing, take action specified	in 3.1 above	<b>e</b> .		
8. <b>3</b>	Is chromatographic performance acceptable with re	espect to:			
	Baseline stability?		[]		
	Resolution?		[]		
	Peak shape?		[]		
	Full-scale graph (attenuation)?		[]		
	Other:?		[]		
ACTION:	Use professional judgement to determine the ac data.	ceptability o	of the		
8.4	Are lab-generated standard mass spectra of the id SVOA compounds present for each sample?	lentified	<u>[ ]</u>		
ACTION:	If any mass spectra are missing, take action a above. If lab does not generate their own sta make note under the "Contract Problems/Non-Com of the Data Assessment. If spectra are unavail the reported results.	s specified i ndard spectra pliance" sect able reject '	in 3.1 a, tion "R"		
8.5	Is the RRT of each reported compound within $\pm$ 0. units of the standard RRT in the continuing calibretication or initial calibration mid-point states.	06 RRT oration andard?	[]		
8.6	Are all ions present in the standard mass spectro relative intensity greater than 10% also present sample mass spectrum?	um at a in the	[]		
8.7	Do sample and standard relative ion intensities a within $\pm$ 20% between standard and sample spectra	agree to ?	[ ]		
ACTION:	Use professional judgement to determine accept If it is determined that incorrect identificat all such data should be changed to not detecte calculated detection limit. In order to be po identified, the data must comply with the crit sections 8.4-8.7 above.	ability of da ions were mac d (U) at the sitively eria listed :	ata. de, in		

USEP. Meth	A Regio od: CLI	on II P/SOW, SOM01.2/Semivolatiles S	Date: OP HW-35/SVOA	Augu , Rev:	st 20 ision	07 1
				YES	NO	N/A
	ACTION:	When sample carry-over is suspected, use p to determine if instrument cross-contamina positive compound identifications.	rofessional judg tion has affecte	ment d		
9.0 <u>T</u>	entative	ly Identified Compounds (TIC)				
	9.1	Are all Tentatively Identified Compound Forms SVOA-TIC) present? Do listed TICs include so retention time, as well as the estimated "J" qualifier?	s (Form I can number or and/or "JN"			
	9.2	Are the mass spectra for the tentatively idea associated "best match" spectra included in t each of the following:	ntified compounds the sample packag	s and ge for		
		a. Samples and/or fractions as appropriate?		[]		
		b. Blanks?		[_]		
	ACTION	If any TIC data are missing, take action s	pecified in 3.1	above.		
	ACTION	Verify "JN" qualifier is present for all c having a percent match of greater than or labeled "unknown" are qualified with a "J"	hemically named equal 85%. TICs qualifier.	TICs		
	9.3	Are any target compounds (from any fraction) TICs? (Example: 1,2-dimethylbenzene is xylene target analyte - and should not be reported a	listed as e – a VOA as a TIC.)		[]	
	ACTION	Flag with "R" only target compound detecte (except blank contamination - see blank ta	d in another fra ble in sec 6.3 a	ction. bove)		
	9.4	Are major ions present in the reference mass a relative intensity greater than 10% also pr sample spectrum?	spectrum with resent in the	[_]		
	9.5	Do TICs and "best match" reference spectra re	elative ion			
		intensities agree within $\pm$ 20%?		[_]		
	ACTION :	Use professional judgement to determine th identifications. If it is determined that tification was made, change its identifica to some less specific identification (exam benzene") as appropriate.	e acceptability an incorrect id tion to "unknown ple: "C3 substit	of TIC en- " or uted		

Action: When a compound is not found in any blank, but is detected in a sample and is a suspected artifact of a common laboratory contaminant, solvent preservatives or Aldo condensation, the result should be qualified as

		STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE			
USEP Meth	A Regio od: CLI	on II Da P/SOW, SOM01.2/Semivolatiles SOP HW-35/a	ate: Augu SVOA, Rev	st 20 isior	07) 1 1
			YES	NO	N/A
		unusable (R). (i.e., common lab contaminants such as Siloxanes (m/e 73), diethyl ether, hexane, certain fre < 100 ug/L. Aldol condensation products: 4-hydroxy-4 4-methyl-2-penten-2-one, and 5,5-dimethyl-2(H)-furanor preservatives cyclohexene, and related by-products: cy cyclohexenone, cyclohexanol, cyclohexenol, chlorocyclohe chlorocyclohexanol.).	CO <sub>2</sub> (m/e 44) eons and ph 4-methyl-2- ne. Solvent yclohexanon exene, and	), thalat pentar e,	es at: one,
10.0	Compound	1 Quantitation and Reported Detection Limits			
	10.1	Are there any transcription/calculation errors in Form 7 results? (Check at least two positive values. Verify that the correct internal standards, quantitation ions, and RRFs were used to calculate Form I results.)	I	[]	
	10.2	Are the CRQLs adjusted to reflect sample dilutions?	[]		
	ACTION	: If errors are large, take action as specified in sect above.	ion 3.1		
	ACTION:	When a sample is analyzed at more than one dilution, CRQLs are used (unless a QC exceedance dictates the u higher CRQLs data from the diluted sample). Replace concentrations that exceed the calibration range in t analysis by crossing out the "E" and its correspondin the original Form I and substituting the data from th sample. Specify which Form I is to be used, then dra across the entire page of all Form I's not to be used any in the data summary package.	the lowest se of the he original g value on e diluted w a red "X" 1, including	L '	
	10.3	For non-aqueous samples, were the percent moisture < $70^{\circ}$	%? []		
		Action: If the % moisture ≥ 70.0% and < 90.0%, qualify of as "J" and non-detects as approximated "UJ" If Moisture ≥ 90%, qualify detects as "J" and non-	detects the % detects as	"R″	
11.0	Standard	is Data (GC/MS)			
	11.1	Are the reconstructed ion chromatograms, and data system printouts (quant. reports) present for each initial and continuing calibration?	n d [_]		
	ACTION	: If any calibration standard data are missing, take ac specified in section 3.1 above.	tion		
12.0	<u>GC/MS Ir</u>	nitial Calibration (Form VI)			
	12 1	Are the Initial Calibration Forms (Form VI SVOA) present	F		

12.1 Are the Initial Calibration Forms (Form VI SVOA) present and complete for the semivolatile target compounds (except seven listed below) at concentrations of 5, 10, 20, 40,

JSEPA Regi Method: CL	on II P/SOW, SOM01.2/Semivolatiles S	Date: SOP HW-35/SVOP	: Augus A, Revi	st 20 sion	07 1
			YES	NO	N/A
	and 80 $\mu$ g/ $\ell$ and 4-point calibration at 10, 20 ug/L for 2,4-dinitrophenol, pentachloropheno nitroaniline, 3-nitroaniline, 4-nitroaniline nitrophenol and 4,6-dinitro-2-methylphenol?	0, 40, and 80 1, 2- 2, 4-			
Note: PAHs/p 0.40, associ calibr	If analysis by Selected Ion Monitoring (SIM) entachlorophenols, calibration standards are 0.80 and 1.0 ng/uL for each target compound o ated DMCs. Pentachlorophenol will require on ation at 0.20, 0.40, 0.80 and 1.0 ng/uL.	technique is req analyzed at 0.10 f interest and t ly a four-point	quested ), 0.20, the initial	for	
ACTION	: If any Initial Calibration forms are missi specified in section 3.1 above.	ing, take action	as		
12.2	Are the relative standard deviation (RSD) st SVOA's over the concentration range of the c (i.e., $RSD \leq 20\%$ , and $\leq 40\%$ for poor perfor table below)?	able for alibration mers (see	<u>[_]</u>		
ACTION	: Circle all outliers in red.				
NOTE :	The twenty two (25) poor performers compound listed below. The relative response factor ( be greater than or equal to 0.010. The RRF compounds must be $\geq$ 0.050.	s and associated RRF) for these of for all other BN	l DMCs a compound NA targe	re Is mus t	t
	Semivolatile Compounds Exhibiting Poor	Response			
· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·					

Semivolatil	Semivolatile Compounds				
2,2'-Oxybis(1-chloropropane)	Benzaldehyde				
4-Chloroaniline	4-Nitroaniline				
Hexachlorobutadiene	4,6-Dinitro-2-methylphenol				
Hexachlorocyclopentadiene	N-Nitrosodiphenylamine				
2-Nitroaniline	3,3'Dichlorobenzidine				
3-Nitroaniline	1,1'Biphenyl				
2,4-Dinitrophenol	Dimethylphthalate				
4-Nitrophenol	Diethylphthalate				
Acetophenone	1,2,4,5-Tetrachlorobenzene				
Caprolactam	Carbazole				

### USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Semivolatiles

Date: August 2007

SOP HW-35/SVOA, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Atrazine	Butylbenzylphthalate
Di-n-butylphthalate	Di-n-octylphthalate
Bis-2(ethylhexyl)phthalate	

- NOTE: Analytes previously qualified "U" for blank contamination are still treated as "hits" when qualifying for initial calibration criteria.
  - 12.3 Are any RRFs < 0.050 (< 0.010 for poor performers)?

<u> [ ] </u>

- ACTION: Circle all outliers in red.
- ACTION: Use the following table to qualify for detects and non-detect compounds.

#### Initial Calibration Actions for Semivolatile Analyses

	Action			
Criteria for Semivolatile Analysis	DetectedNon-DetectedAssociatedAssociatedCompoundsCompounds			
RRF < 0.010 (compounds exhibiting poor response) RRF < 0.050 (all other target compounds)	J	R		
RRF $\geq$ 0.010 (compounds exhibiting poor response) RRF $\geq$ 0.050 (all other target compounds)	No qualification			
<pre>%RSD &lt; 40.0% (compounds exhibiting poor response) %RSD &lt; 20.0% (all other target compounds)</pre>	No qualification			
<pre>%RSD &gt; 40.0% (compounds exhibiting poor response) %RSD &gt; 20.0% (all other target compounds)</pre>	J No qualificati			

- ACTION: Document in the Data Assessment Report the analytes that fail %RSD and/or RRF criteria.
- 12.4 Are there any transcription/calculation errors in the reporting of RRFs, RRFs or %RSD values? (Check at least 2 values, but if errors are found, check more.)

- ACTION: Circle errors in red.
- ACTION: If errors are large, contact the TOPO to obtain an explanation/resubmittal from the lab, document in the Data Assessment under Contract Problems/Non-Compliance.

USEF	PA Regio	on II Da	ite: Augu	st 20	07
Meth	od: CLI	P/SOW, SOM01.2/Semivolatiles SOP HW-35/S	SVOA, Rev	isior	11
			YES	NO	N/A
13.0	GC/MS Co	ontinuing Calibration Verification (CCV)(Form VII)			
	13.1	Are the Continuing Calibration Forms (Form VII SVOA) present and complete for the semivolatile fraction?	[_]		
	13.2	Did the 12 hour clock begin with either the injection of DFTPP or in cases where a closing CCV can be used as an opening CCV for each instrument?	[_]		
	ACTION	: If any forms are missing or no continuing calibration has been analyzed within twelve hours of every sample ask the TOPO to obtain explanation/resubmittal from th laboratory. If continuing calibration data are unava- flag all associated sample data as unusable (R).	standard analysis, ne ilable,		
	13.3	Do any semivolatile compounds have a % Difference (% D) between the initial RRF and CCV RRF exceeding ± 40% for the poor performers (see table/page 22) or ± 25% for the remaining compounds?			
	ACTION	: Circle all outliers in red.			
	13.4	Do any semivolatile compounds have a RRF < 0.05 or < 0.0 for the poor performers?	1	[]	
	ACTION	: Circle all outliers in red.			

Note: Verify that the CCV was run at the required frequency (an opening and closing CCV must be run within 12-hour period) and the CCV was compared to the correct initial calibration. If the mid-point standard from the initial calibration is used as an opening CCV, verify that the result (RRF) of the mid-point standard was compared to the average RRF from the correct initial calibration.

- Note: The closing CCV used to bracket the end of a 12-hour analytical sequence may be used as the opening CCV for the new 12-hour analytical sequence, provided that all the technical acceptance criteria are met for an opening CCV (see table below). If the closing CCV does not meet the technical acceptance criteria for an opening CCV, then a DFTPP tune followed by an opening CCV is required and the next 12-hour time period begins with the DFTPP tune.
- Action: Use the following table to qualify data based on the technical acceptance criteria for the opening CCV and closing CCV.

#### Continuing Calibration Verification (CCV) Actions for Low/Medium Semivolatiles Analyses

Criteria for	a for Criteria for g CCV Closing CCV	Action		
Opening CCV		Detected Associated Compounds	Non-Detected Associated Compounds	

USEPA Re	egion II	
Method:	CLP/SOW,	SOM01.2/Semivolatiles

# Date: August 2007

SOP HW-35/SVOA, Revision 1

#### YES NO N/A

[ ]

[\_]

[]

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

RRF < 0.010 (poor responders) RRF < 0.050 (for all other compounds)	RRF < 0.010 (for all target compounds)	J	R
RRF $\geq$ 0.010 (poor responders) RRF $\geq$ 0.050 (all other target compounds)	RRF > 0.010 (for all target compounds)	No	Action
<pre>%D &gt; 40.0 or &lt; -40.0 (poor responders) %D &gt; 25.0 or &lt; -25.0 (all other volatile target compounds)</pre>	%D > 50.0 or < -50.0 (for all target compounds)	J	UJ
$D \leq 40.0$ or $\geq -40.0$ (poor responders) $D \leq 25.0$ or $\geq -25.0$ (all other target compounds)	$D \leq 50.0$ or $\geq -50.0$ (for all target compounds)	No	Action
Opening CCV not performed at required frequency *	Closing CCV not performed at required frequency *	R	

- \* The 12-hour clock begins with either the injection of DFTPP or in cases where a closing CCV can be used as an opening CCV, the 12-hour clock begins with the injection of the opening CCV.
  - ACTION: Document in the Data Assessment under Contract Problems/Non-Compliance if more than two of the required analytes failed the above acceptance criteria.
  - 13.5 Are there any transcription/calculation errors for the reporting of RRFs, or %D between initial RRFs and continuing RRFs? (Check at least two values but if errors are found, check more.)

ACTION: Circle errors with red pencil.

- ACTION: If errors are large, notify the TOPO to obtain explanation/resubmittals from the lab. Document errors in the Contract Problems/Non-Compliance section of the Data Assessment.
- Note: All DMCs must meet RRF  $\geq$  0.010. No qualification of the data is necessary on the DMCs RRF and RSD/Diff data <u>alone</u>. However, use professional judgment to evaluate the DMC and RSD/D Diff data in conjunction with the DMC recoveries to determine the need of qualification of the data.

#### 14.0 Internal Standard (Form VIII)

14.1 Were the internal standard area counts for every sample and blank within the range of 50.0% and 200.0% of its response from the associated 12-hour calibration (opening CCV or mid-point initial calibration standard?

If no, were affected samples reanalyzed?

ACTION: 1. Circle all outliers with red pencil.

14.2 Are the retention times of the internal standards in sample or blanks within ± 30 seconds from the RT of the

USEPA Regio Method: CL	on II P/SOW, S	SOM01.2/Sem:	ivolatiles	S	Dat OP HW-35/SV	e: Augu OA, Rev	st 20 ision	07 1
					• • •	YES	NO	N/A
	internal standard calibrat	standard in (opening CCV ion)?	the 12-hour a ' or mid-point	associated standard	calibration from initial	<u>[ ]</u>		
Action	: Use the	following ta	ble to qualif	Ty the data				

#### INTERNAL STANDARDS ACTIONS FOR LOW/MEDIUM SEMIVOLATILES

	ACI	ION	
Criteria	Detected Associated Compounds *	Non-detected Associated Compounds *	
Area counts $\geq$ 50% and $\leq$ 200% of 12-hour standard (opening CCV or mid-point standard from initial calibration)	No Action	required	
Area counts < 50% of 12-hour standard (opening CCV or mid-point standard from initial calibration)	J	R	
Area counts > 200% of 12-hour standard (Opening CCV or mid-point standard from initial calibration)	J	No Action	
RT difference > 30.0 seconds between samples and 12-hour standard (Opening CCV or mid-point standard from initial calibration)	R		
RT difference $\leq$ 30.0 seconds between samples and 12-hour standard (Opening CCV or mid-point standard from initial calibration)	No Action	required	

For semivolatile compounds associated to each internal standard, see Table 2-Semivolatile standards corresponding Target and Deuterated Monitoring Compounds for Quantitation in SOM01.1, Exhibit D, available at:

Http://www.epa.gov/superfund/programs/clp/som1.htm

Examine the chromatographic profile for that sample to determine if any false positives or negatives exist. For shifts of a large magnitude, the reviewer may consider partial or total rejection of the data for that sample fraction. Detects should not need to be qualified as unusable "R" if the mass spectral are met.

- NOTE: <u>Contract Requirements</u>: The SOM (section 11.4.4 page D-50/SVOA Low/Medium states that any sample which fails the acceptance criteria for internal standard response must be reanalyzed.
- ACTION: Document in the Data Assessment under Contract Problems/Non-Compliance any sample(s) which failed the above IS acceptance criteria.

USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Semivolatiles Date: August 2007 SOP HW-35/SVOA, Revision 1

[]

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

#### 15.0 Field Duplicates

- 15.1 Were any field duplicates submitted for Low Concentration SVOA analysis?
- ACTION: Compare the reported results for field duplicates and calculate the relative percent difference.
- ACTION: Any gross variation between duplicate results must be addressed in the reviewer narrative. If large differences exist, contact the TOPO to confirm identification of field duplicates with the sampler.

USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Semivolatiles Date: August 2007 SOP HW-35/SVOA, Revision 1

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

#### Definitions

CCS - contract compliance screening CLASS - Contract Laboratory Analytical Services Support CLP - Contract Laboratory Program CRQL - Contract Required Quantitation Limit DFTPP - decafluorotriphenylphosphine GC/MS - gas chromatography/mass spectroscopy kg - kilogram µg - microgram l - liter  $m\ell$  - milliliter QC - quality control RAS - Routine Analytical Services RIC - reconstructed ion chromatogram RPD - relative percent difference RRF - relative response factor RRF - average relative response factor (from initial calibration) RRT - relative retention time RSD - relative standard deviation RT - retention time RSCC - Regional Sample Control Center SDG - sample delivery group SOP - standard operating procedure SOW - Statement of Work SVOA - semivolatile organic acid TCL - Target Compound List TCLP - Toxicity Characteristics Leachate Procedure TIC - tentatively identified compound TPO - technical project officer VTSR - validated time of sample receipt TOPO - Task Order Project Officer

USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Semivolatiles SOP HW-35/SVOA, Revision 1

Date: August 2007

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

#### References

- 1. USEPA Contract Laboratory Program of Work for Organic Analysis Multi-Media, Multi-Concentration, SOW/CLPSOM01.1, October 2004
- 2. National Functional Guidelines for Superfund Organic Methods Data Review January 2005

SOP HW-36 **Revision 1** August 2007 SOP NO. HW-36/Pesticide Data Validation **USEPA** Contract Laboratory Program Statement of Work for Organic Analysis of Low/Medium Concentration of Pesticide Organic Compounds SOM01.2 Date: 8/13/07 Prepared by: Chemist George Karras, Hazardous Waste Support Section Date: 10/3/07 none Peer Reviewed by: Russell Arnone, Chemist Hazardous Waste Support Section Concurred by: Date: m. Reword Linda Mauel, Chief Mazardous Waste Support Section Approved by: unin Date: 10 Robert Runyon, Chief Hazardous Waste Support Branch Annual Review Reviewed by: Date: Name Reviewed by: Date: Name

# SOM01.2/Low/Medium Pesticides SOP HW-36 EPA/Region II

# TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRO	DDUC	CTION	1
	Sco	ope and Applicability	1
	Sur	nmary	1
	Dat	ta Qualifiers	1
	Lak	o Qualifiers	2
	Rev	viewer Qualifications	<u>2</u>
PACK	AGE	COMPLETENESS AND DELIVERABLES	<u>3</u>
	1.	Chain of Custody and Sampling Trip Reports	3
	2.	Data Completeness and Deliverables	3
	3.	Cover Letter SDG Narrative	4
	4.	Data Validation Checklist	5
PART	A:	VOA ANALYSES	5
	1.	Sample Conditions/Problems	5
	2.	Holding Times	5
	3.	Deuterated Monitoring Compound (DMC) Recovery (Form II)	6
	4.	Matrix Spike/Matrix Spike Duplicate Recovery (Form III)	8
	5.	<u>Method Blanks (Form IV)</u>	9
	б.	<u>Contamination</u>	0
	7.	<u>GC/ECD Instrument Performance Check (Form V)</u> <u>1</u>	1
	8.	Analytical Sequence Check (Form VIII)	6
	9.	Florisil Cartridge and GPC Checks (Form IX) 1	7
	10.	. Pesticide Identification (Form X) $\ldots$ $\ldots$ $\ldots$ $\ldots$ $12$	8
	11.	. <u>Target Pesticide List (TCL)</u>	0
	12.	. Compound Quantitation and Reported Detection Limits 2	0
	13	. <u>Field Duplicates</u>	1
	Def	finitions	<u>2</u>
	Ref	ferences	<u>3</u>

#### INTRODUCTION

### Scope and Applicability

This SOP offers detailed guidance in evaluating laboratory data generated according to the method in the "USEPA Contract Laboratory Program Statement of Work for Organics Analysis Multi-Media, Multi-Concentration, SOM01.1, May 2005". The validation procedures and actions discussed in this document are based on the requirements set forth in the "USEPA Contract Laboratory Program National Functional Guidelines for Superfund Organic Methods Data Review, January 2005". This document attempts to cover technical problems specific to low/Medium concentration of Pesticide compounds. Situations may arise where data limitations must be assessed based on the reviewer's own professional judgement.

In addition to technical requirements, contractual requirements may also be covered in this document. While it is important that instances of contract non-compliance be addressed in the Data Assessment, the technical criteria are always used to qualify the analytical data.

### Summary

To ensure a thorough evaluation of each result in a data case, the reviewer must complete the checklist within this SOP, answering specific questions while performing the prescribed "ACTIONS" in each section. Qualifiers (or flags) are applied to questionable or unusable results as instructed. The data qualifiers discussed in this document are as follows:

### Data Qualifiers

- U The analyte was analyzed for, but was not detected above the reported sample quantitation limit.
- J The analyte was positively identified; the associated numerical value is the approximate concentration of the analyte in the sample.
- N The analysis indicates the presence of an analyte for which there is presumptive evidence to make a "tentative identification."
- JN The analysis indicates the presence of an analyte that has been "tentatively identified" and the associated numerical value represents its approximate

concentration.

- UJ The analyte was not detected above the reported sample quantitation limit. However, the reported quantitation limit is approximate and may or may not represent the actual limit of quantitation necessary to accurately and precisely measure the analyte in the sample.
- R The sample results are rejected due to serious deficiencies in the ability to analyze the sample and meet quality control criteria. The presence or absence of the analyte cannot be verified.

### Lab Qualifiers:

- D The positive value is the result of an analysis at a secondary dilution factor.
- B The analyte is present in the associated method blank as well as in the sample. This qualifier has a different meaning when validating inorganic data.
- E The concentration of this analyte exceeds the calibration range of the instrument.
- P Pesticide target analytes when the % Difference between the analyte concentrations obtained from the two dissimilar GC columns is greater than 25%.
- C This flag applies to pesticide results when the identification has been confirmed by GC/MS analysis.
- S Single point calibration.

The reviewer must prepare a detailed data assessment to be submitted along with the completed SOP checklist. The Data Assessment must list all data qualifications, reasons for qualifications, instances of missing data and contract noncompliance.

### Reviewer Qualifications:

Data reviewers must possess a working knowledge of the USEPA Statement of Work SOM01.2 and National Functional Guidelines mentioned above.

USEPA Region	n II			Date: 2	August	2007
Method: CLP,	SOW, SOM01.2	2/Pesticide	SOP	HW-36/Pesticide	, Revi	sion 1
	•				YES N	O N/A

#### PACKAGE COMPLETENESS AND DELIVERABLES

CASE NUMBER:	LAB:	
SITE NAME:	SDG No(s).:	
1.0 Chain of Custody and Sampling	Trip Reports	
1.1 Are the Traffic Reports present for all samples	/Chain-of-Custody Records ?	<u> </u>
ACTION: If no, contact RSCC, replacement of missi from the lab.	or the TOPO to obtain ng or illegible copies	
1.2 Is the Sampling Trip Re samples?	eport present for all	<u> </u>
ACTION: If no, contact either obtain the necessary	RSCC or ask the TOPO to information from the prime	

### 2.0 Data Completeness and Deliverables

contractor.

- 2.1 Have any missing deliverables been received and added to the data package? \_\_\_\_\_[ ] \_\_\_\_
- ACTION: Contact the TOPO to obtain an explanation or resubmittal of any missing deliverables from the lab. If lab cannot provide them, note the effect on the review of the data package in the Contract

USEP Meth	A Regiond: CL	on II Date: P/SOW, SOM01.2/Pesticide SOP HW-36/Pesticid	: Augus de, Rev	st 20 visio	07 m 1
			YES	NO	N/A
		Problems/Non-compliance section of the Data Assessment.			
	2.2	Was SMO/CLASS CCS checklist included with the package?	<u>[_]</u>		
	2.3	Are there any discrepancies between the Traffic Reports/Chain-of-Custody Records, and Sampling Trip Report?		[_]	
	ACTIO	N: If yes, contact the TOPO to obtain an explanation resubmittal of any missing deliverables from the laboratory.	on or e		
3.0	<u>Cover</u>	Letter SDG Narrative			
	3.1	Is the SDG Narrative or Cover Letter Present?	[_]		
	3.2	Are case number, SDG number and contract number contained in the SDG Narrative or cover letter (see SOW, Exhibit B, section 2.5.1)? EPA sample numbers in the SDG, detailed documentation of any quality control, sample, shipment, and/or analytical problems encountered in processing the samples? Corrective action taken?	[ ]		
	3.3	Does the Narrative contain the following information SOM01.1, page B-12, section 2.5.1)? column used, storage of samples, case#, SDG#, analytical problems, and discrepancies between field and lab weights.			
	3.5	Did the contractor record the temperature of the cooler on the Form DC-1, Item 9 - Cooler Temperature, and in the SDG Narrative?	[_]		
	3.6	Does the Case Narrative contain the "verbatim" statement (page B-12, section 2.5.1 of the SOM)?	[]		

6

USEPA Region II Date: August Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Pesticide SOP HW-36/Pesticide, Revis				07 on 1
		YES	NO	N/A
ACTION:	If "No", to any question in this section, contact the TOPO to obtain necessary resubmittals. If unavailable, document under the Contract Problems/ Non-Compliance section of the Data Assessment.			
4.0 <u>Data V</u>	alidation Checklist			
4.1	Check the package for the following (see SOM rep requirements, section 2.1, page B-10):	orting		

a. Is the package paginated in ascending order starting from the SDG narrative?	<u> </u>
b. Are all forms and copies legible?	
c. Assembled in the order set forth in the SOW?	[_]
d. All Pesticide Data present?	<u> </u>

### PART A: Low/Medium Pesticide Analyses

### 1.0 <u>Sample Conditions/Problems</u>

- 1.1 Do the Traffic Reports/Chain-of-Custody Records, Sampling Trip Report or Lab Narrative indicate any problems with sample receipt, condition of samples, analytical problems or special circumstances affecting the quality of the data? \_\_\_\_\_ [\_] \_\_\_\_
- ACTION: If samples were not iced or the ice was melted upon arrival at the laboratory and the temperature of the cooler was > 10° C, then flag all positive results with a "J" and all non-detects "UJ".

### 2.0 Holding Times

USEPA Re Method:	gion II Da CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Pesticide SOP HW-36/Pesti	te: Augu cide, Re	st 20 visio	07 m 1
		YES	NO	N/A
2.1	Have any Pesticide technical holding times, determined from date of collection to date of analysis, been exceeded?		<u>[ ]</u>	

2.2 Preservation: <u>Aqueous</u> and <u>Non-aqueous</u> samples must be cooled at 4°C ± 2°C.

ACTION: Qualify sample results according to the following table.

Holding Time Actions for Low/Medium Pesticide Analyses

			Action		
Matrix Preserved Criteria		Criteria	Detected Associated Compounds	Non-Detected Associated Compounds	
	No	<pre>&lt; 7 days (extraction) &lt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	J*	UJ*	
Aqueous	No	<pre>&gt; 7 days (extraction) &gt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	J UJ		
	Yes	<pre>&lt; 7 days (extraction) &lt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	No qualification		
	Yes	<pre>&gt; 7 days (extraction) &gt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	J	IJJ	
	Yes/No	> 28 Days (Gross Exceedance)	J	R	
	No	<pre>&lt; 14 days (extraction) &lt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	J*	UJ*	
Non-aqueous	No	<pre>&gt; 14 days (extraction) &gt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	J	IJJ	
	Yes	<pre>&lt; 14 days (extraction) &lt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	No qualification		
	Yes	<pre>&gt; 14 days (extraction) &gt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	J	UJ	
	Yes/No	> 28 Days (Gross Exceedance)	J	R	

\* Only if cooler temperature exceeds 10°C (see ACTION in Section 1.1 above). No action required if temperature  $\leq$  10°C.

USEPA Regio Method: CLI	on II P/SOW, SOM01.2/Pesticide SOP HW-36/Pest	Date: Augu cicide, Re	st 20 visio	)07 on 1
		YES	NO	N/A
3.0 <u>Surrogate</u>	e Recovery (Form II Pest-1, Form II Pest-2, Form VIII)			
3.1	Are the Pesticide Recovery Summary Forms present?	[]		
ACTION	Contact the TOPO to obtain an explanation/resubmitta lab. If missing deliverables are unavailable, docum effect in the Data Assessment.	l from the ent the		
3.2 We (1 M:	ere the two surrogates, tetrachloro-m-xylene ICX) and decachlorobiphenyl (DCB) added to all samples, S/MSD, LCS, blanks including standards?	[_]		
ACTION	: If no, use professional judgment in qualifying data as missing surrogate analyte may not directly apply to target analytes.			
3.3	Were outliers marked with an asterisk on Form II?	[ ]		
ACTION	: Circle all outliers with a red pencil.			
	If yes, were effected samples re-analyzed?	[ ]		
3.4	The RTs of the surrogates in each Performance Evaluation Mixture (PEM), mid-point Individual Standard Mixture (A and B) or (C) used for continuing calibration verification, all samples, including MS/MSD, LCS and all blanks must be within the calculated RT window. TCX mu be within $\pm$ 0.05 minutes and DCB must be within $\pm$ 0.10 minutes of the mean retention time (RT) determined from the initial calibration and tabulated in Form VIII Pest	n 1 1st a		
	Were any outliers marked with an asterisk on Form VIII Pest?		[]	
ACTION	: Circle all outliers with a red <u>pencil</u> . If any Surro outside the required limits, qualify their associate compounds (See Table below) as follows:	gate is d target		

### Surrogate Compound Recovery Action for Pesticides

	Action	
Criteria	Detected Target Compounds	Non-Detected Target Compounds
%R > 200%	J	No qualification
150% < %R <u>&lt;</u> 200%	J	No qualification

# USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Pesticide

# Date: August 2007 SOP HW-36/Pesticide, Revision 1

soi im so/rescicide, kevision i

YES NO

N/A

30% <u>&lt;</u> %R <u>&lt;</u> 150%	No qualification	
10% <u>&lt;</u> %R < 30%	J	IJ
<pre>%R &lt; 10% (sample dilution not a factor)</pre>	J	R
%R < 10% (sample dilution is a factor)	Use professional judgment	
RT out of RT window	Use professional judgment	
RT within RT window	No qualification	

. . . . . . .

#### Note: Blank analysis having surrogates out of specification:

The reviewer must give special consideration to the validity of associated samples. Basic concern is whether the blank problems represent an isolated problem with the blank alone or whether there is a fundamental problem with the analytical process. For example, if one or more samples in the batch show acceptable surrogate recoveries, the reviewer may choose to consider the blank problem to be an isolated occurrence.

- ACTION: Note in the Data Assessment under Contract Problems/ Non-Compliance if the Lab did not perform reanalysis and reviewer's judgment regarding blank problem.
- 3.5 Are there any transcription/calculation errors between raw data and Form IIs?

[]

- ACTION: If large errors exist, ask the TOPO to obtain an explanation/resubmittal from the lab, make any necessary corrections and note errors in the data assessment.
- Note: Surrogate recovery limits criteria and qualification apply to samples diluted 5X and less. For samples diluted greater than 5X, recovery criteria does not apply Because it is assumed surrogate is diluted below the quantitation range.

#### 4.0 Matrix Spike/Matrix Spike Duplicate Recovery (Form III)

Note: Data for MS/MSD will not be present unless requested.

- 4.1 Are the MS/MSD Recovery Forms (Form III BNA) present? [] \_\_\_\_
- 4.2 Was the MS/MSD analyzed at the required frequency (once per SDG, or every 20 samples, whichever is more frequent)? []
- ACTION: If any MS/MSD data are missing, take action as specified in section 3.1 above.
- ACTION: No action is taken on MS/MSD data <u>alone</u>. However, using professional judgement, the validator may use the MS and MSD
| USEPA Re | egion II |                   |
|----------|----------|-------------------|
| Method:  | CLP/SOW, | SOM01.2/Pesticide |

### Date: August 2007 SOP HW-36/Pesticide, Revision 1

ber mit 50/rebererde, nevibron r

YES NO N/A

[\_]

[]

[ ]

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

results in conjunction with other QC criteria and determine the need for some qualification of the data. If Any MS/MSD % recovery or RPD is out of specification, qualify data to include the consideration of the existence of interference in the raw data. Consideration include, but not limited to the following "Action":

#### Matrix Spike/Matrix Spike Duplicate Action for Pesticides

	Action		
Criteria	Detected Spike Compounds	Non-detected Spike Compounds	
%R or RPD > Upper Acceptance Limit	J	No qualification	
20% <u>&lt;</u> %R < Lower Acceptance Limit	J	UJ	
%R < 20%	J	Use Professional Judgement	
Lower Acceptance Limit <u>&lt;</u> %R; RPD <u>&lt;</u> Upper Acceptance Limit	No qualification required		

Note: If it can be determined that the results of the MS/MSD affects only the sample spiked, limit qualification to only this sample. However, use professional judgment when it is determined through the MS/MSD results that the laboratory is having systematic problem in the analysis of one or more analytes that affect all associated samples.

#### 5.0 Blanks (Form IV)

- 5.1 Is the Pesticide Method Blank Summary (Form IV PEST) present for aqueous and soil samples?
- 5.2 <u>Frequency of Analysis</u>: For the analysis of PEST TCL compounds, has a method blank been analyzed for each SDG or every 20 samples, whichever is more frequent?
- ACTION: If any blank data are missing, take action as specified above in section 3.1. If blank data is not available, reject "R" all associated positive data. However, using professional judgement, the data reviewer may substitute field blank data for missing method blank data.
- 5.3 A separate Form IV should be present if part of an extraction batch required sulfur removal. In such cases some samples will be listed on two blank summary forms once under the method blank, and once under the sulfur clean-up blank (PCBLK). Was this additional blank raw data and Form IV submitted when required?

USEP. Meth	A Regio od: CLI	Date Date P/SOW, SOM01.2/Pesticide SOP HW-36/Pesticide	: Augu le, Re	st 20 visio	07 m 1
			YES	NO	N/A
	ACTION:	If Form IV sulfur clean-up blank is missing, take action as specified in section 3.1 above.			
	5.4	Has a Pesticide instrument blank been analyzed at the beginning of every 12 hr. period following the initial calibration sequence (minimum contract requirement)?	[_]		
	ACTION:	If any blank data are missing, take action specified in Section 3.1.			
	5.5	Was the correct identification scheme used for all Pesticide blanks? (See page B-39, section 3.3.7.3 of SOM01.1 for further information)	[ ]		
	ACTION:	Contact the TOPO to obtain resubmittals or make the required corrections on the forms. Document in the Data Assessment under Contract Problems/Non-Compliance all corrections made by the validator.			
	5.6	<u>Chromatography</u> : Review the blank raw data chromatogram, quant. Reports and data system printout. Is the chromatographic performance (baseline stability) acceptable for each instrument?	[]		
	ACTION:	Use professional judgement to determine the effect on the	data.		
	5.7	Are all detected hits for target compounds in method, and field blanks less than the CRQL?	[]		
	ACTION:	IF no, an explanation and laboratory's corrective actions addressed in the case SDG narrative. Contact TOPO to req revised narrative and make a note in the Contract Problem section of the Data Assessment.	must k uest fr s/Non-C	oe com Lal Complia	o. ance
6.0 <u>C</u>	ontamina	ation			
	NOTE :	"Water blanks", "drill blanks", and distilled water blanks" validated like any other sample, and are <u>not</u> used to qualify Do not confuse them with the other QC blanks discussed below	are y data. w.		
	6.1	Do any method/reagent or cleanup blanks contain positive hits for target pesticide compounds with values greater than the CRQL for that analyte?		[_]	
	Note: 1 k	The concentration of each target compound in the instrument plank must be less than the CRQL for that analyte.			
	ACTION:	Make note in data assessment under Contract Problems/Non- Compliance if any blank contains hit above the CRQLs.			

USEPA Regi Method: CI	ion II LP/SOW, SOM01.2/Pesticide	Date SOP HW-36/Pestici	Date: August 2007 SOP HW-36/Pesticide, Revision 1			
			YES	NO	N/A	
6.2	Do any instrument blanks contain results with values greater than	positive Pesticide CRQLs?		[]		
ACTION	N: Take the action specified in sec	tion 6.1.				
6.3	Do any field/rinse blanks have po	sitive Pesticide results?		[]		
NOTE :	All field blank results associate (may exceed one per case) must be not be qualified because of conta	d with a particular group used to qualify data. Bl mination in another blank.	of samp anks ma Field	les Y		

ACTION: Follow the directions in the table below to qualify results due to contamination. Use the largest value from all the associated blanks. If any blanks are grossly contaminated, all associated sample data should be qualified unusable (R).

performance criteria, spectral or calibration QC problems.

Blank Type	Blank Result	Sample Result	Action for Samples
	Detects	Not detected	No qualification required
	< CRQL	< CRQL	Report CRQL value with a U
		> CRQL	No qualification required
	= CRQL	< CRQL	Report CRQL value with a U
Method, Field,		<u>&gt;</u> CRQL	No qualification required
Sulfur Cleanup,		< CRQL	Report CRQL value with a U
Instrument	> CRQL	≥ CRQL and < blank contamination	Report concentration of sample with a U
		≥ CRQL and ≥ blank contamination	No qualification required
	Gross contamination	Detects	Qualify results as unusable R

#### Blank Action for Pesticide Analyses

blanks must be qualified for system monitoring compound, instrument

NOTE: Analytes qualified "U" for blank contamination are treated as "hits" when qualifying for calibration criteria.

Note: When applied as described in the table above, the contaminant concentration in the blank are multiplied by the sample dilution factor.

## STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE . . . . .

USEPA Regi Method: CL	on II Date P/SOW, SOM01.2/Pesticide SOP HW-36/Pesticid	: Augu de, Re	st 20 visio	)07 on 1
		YES	NO	N/A
6.4	Are there field/rinse/equipment blanks associated with every sample?	[]		
ACTION	Note in data assessment if there's no associated field/rinse/equipment blank.			
	Exception: samples taken from a drinking water tap do not associated field blanks.	have		
7.0 <u>Gas Chrc</u>	matography with Electron Capture Detector (GC/ECD) Instrumen	t Perfo	rmance	<u>&gt;</u>
<u>Check</u>	(Form VI-5 thru 10, Form VII-1)			
7.1	Are the following Forms, chromatograms and data system printouts present?			
	a.) Form VI Pest-5/Pesticide Resolution Check Mix	[]		
	b.) Form VI Pest-6/Performance Evaluation Mixture	[]		
	c.) Form VI Pest-7/Individual Standard Mixture A	[]		
	d.) Form VI Pest-8/Individual Standard Mixture B	[_]		
	e.) Form VI Pest-9/Individual Standard Mixture C	[_]		
	f.) Form VI Pest-10/Individual Standard Mixture C	[]		
	g.) Form VII Pest-1/Calibration Verification	[]		
	h.) Were the appropriate GC columns used as specified on page D-11/Pest, sections 6.26.1.3 to 6.26.1.3.2 in SOM01.1?	[]		
7.2	The identification of a single component pesticide by GC method is based primarily on RT data. Were the following requirements met:			
	a.) The chromatogram that results for PEM and Individual Standards Mixture analyses must display the analytes at > 10% full scale but < 100% full scale	<u>[]</u>		
	b.) The baseline of the chromatogram must return to below 50% of full scale before the elution of alpha-BHC, and return to below 25% of full scale after the elution time of alpha-BHC and before the elution time of decachlorobiphenyl	<u>[]]</u>		
NOTE :	If a chromatogram is replotted electronically to meet these requirements, the scaling factor used must be displayed on	the		

14

	/ Som, Somol.2/ rescicide				
			YES	NO	N,
	chromatogram, and if standard, bla replotted electronically to meet t chromatogram and the replotted chr the data package.	nk, etc chromatogram need hese requirements, both t omatogram(s) must be subm	s to be ne init: itted in	ial n	
ACTION:	If all single component pesticio chromatograms for all Individual TOPO to obtain resubmittal of th	des (SCP) are not clearly L Standard Mixtures and PE ne necessary data.	display M, noti	ed on fy the	9
7.3	Are there any transcription/calcul data and the Forms?	ation errors between raw		[]	
ACTION:	If large errors exist, take acti	ion specified in section 3	.1 abov	e.	
7.4	Resolution Check Mixture (Form VI	Pest-5)			
This mi calibra	xture is analyzed at the beginning tion sequence. Were the following	of every initial met:	r 1		
a.) If resolut	two Individual Standard Mixture (A ion is <u>&gt;</u> 60% in both GC columns or	and B) are used, the			
b.) One between 50% on	Individual Standard Mixture C is two adjacent peaks is <u>&gt;</u> 80% on th the secondary column.	used, the resolution e primary column and $\geq$			
ACTION:	If no, follow the action in Acti	ion Table below.			
7.5	Performance Evaluation Mixture (Fo	rm VI Pest-6)			
This mi Resolut calibra	xture is analyzed at the beginning ion Check Mixture) and at the end tion sequence. Were the following	(following the of the initial met?	[]		
a.) The and con column.	resolution between any two adjace tinuing calibration verification m	nt peaks in the initial ust be <u>&gt;</u> 90% on each			
b.) The 20.0% c Endrin	% breakdown of 4,4'-DDT and Endri n each column and the combined % b in the PEMs must be <u>&lt;</u> 30.0% on eac	n in the PEMs must be <u>&lt;</u> reakdown for 4,4'-DDT and h column.			
ACTION:	IF no, take action as specified	in Action Table below.			
7.6	<u>Mid-Point Individual Standard Mixt</u>	ure (A and B) or (C)			
The res which I by anal	olution capabilities of the GC/ECD ndividual Standard Mixture can be ysis of the Resolution Check Mixtu	system used will dictate used. This is determined re (RCM) to see if the			

USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Pesticide	Date: August 2 SOP HW-36/Pesticide, Revisi			007 on 1	
		YES	NO	N/A	
RCM criteria were met (see section 7.4 above) criteria met?	). Were the following	3 <u>[]</u>			
a.) Mid-Point Individual Standard Mixture A a See section 7.4 a.) Above	and B:				
h ) Mid Drive Tudicidus] Chandrad Mistana C.					

b.) Mid-Point Individual Standard Mixture C: See section 7.4 b.) Above

ACTION: If no, take action as specified in the following Table.

# Table: Gas Chromatography with Electron Capture Detector (GC/ECD) Instrument Performance Check Action

Criteria [(Individual Standard Mixture (A and B)]	Criteria (Individual Standard Mixture C)	Action
Resolution Check Mixture % Resolution <60.0%	Resolution Check Mixture % Resolution <80.0% (primary column) % Resolution <50.0% (secondary column)	Detects: JN Non-detects: R
PEM % Resolution <90.0%		Detects: JN Non-detects : R
PEM: 4,4'-DDT % Breakdown	Detects for 4,4'-DDT: J Detects for 4,4'-DDD: J Detects for 4,4'-DDE: J	
PEM: 4,4'-DDT % Breakdown detected	Non-detects for 4,4'-DDT: R Detects for 4,4'-DDD: JN Detects for 4,4'-DDE: JN	
PEM: Endrin % Breakdow	Detects for Endrin: J Detects for Endrin aldehyde: J Detects for Endrin ketone: J	
PEM: Endrin % Breakdow detected	Detects for Endrin: R Detects for Endrin aldehyde: JN Detects for Endrin ketone: JN	
PEM: Combined % Breakdown	n > 30.0%	Apply qualifiers as described above considering degree of individual breakdown

USEPA Re	egion II	
Method:	CLP/SOW,	SOM01.2/Pesticide

### Date: August 2007 SOP HW-36/Pesticide, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

Mid-point Individual Standard Mixtures (A and B) % Resolution <90.0%	Mid-point Individual Standard Mixture (C) % Resolution <80.0% (primary column) Mid-point Individual Standard Mixture (C) % Resolution <50.0% (secondary column)	Detects: JN Non-detects: R
PEM analysis not per	formed at the required frequency $\star$	All results: R
Mid-point Individual performed at the req	Standard Mixtures analysis not uired frequency **	All results: R

. . . . . . . . . . .

- \* The PEM is analyzed at the beginning (following the Resolution Check Mixture) and at the end of the initial calibration.
- \*\* Mid-point Individual Standard Mixture A and B: Analyzed as part of the initial calibration. The mid-point INDA and INDB must bracket one end of each 12-hour analytical period.

Mid-point Individual Standard Mixture C: Analyzed as part of the initial calibration. The midpoint INDC must bracket one end of each 12-hour analytical period.

7.7 Initial Calibration (Form VI Pest-2, Form VI Pest-3, Form VI Pest-3)

Were the Initial Calibration %RSD criteria met?

ACTION: If no, qualify the data according to the following table:

#### Initial Calibration Action for Pesticide analyses

	Action		
Criteria	Detected Associated Compounds	Non-Detected Associated Compounds	
Initial calibration is not performed or not performed in proper sequence	Use Professional Judgment and notify Contract Lab Program (CLP) Project Officer		
<pre>%RSD exceeds allowable limits *</pre>	J No qualificati		
<pre>%RSD within allowable limits *</pre>	No qualit	fication	

\* %RSD < 20.0% for single component target compound except alpha-BHC and delta-BHC. %RSD < 25.0% for alpha-BHC and delta-BHC.</pre> %RSD < 30.0% for Toxaphene.</pre> %RSD < 30.0 for surrogates (tetrachloro-m-xylene and decachlorobiphenyl).</pre>

7.8 Continuing Calibration Verification (CCV) (Form VII)

> Were the Absolute Retention Time (RT) for each Single Component Pesticide (SCP) and surrogate in the PEM and mid-point concentration of Individual Standard Mixtures

[]

#### STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE . . . . .

[]\_\_\_\_

USEPA Region II		Date: Au	gust 2	007
Method: CLP/SOW,	SOM01.2/Pesticide	SOP HW-36/Pesticide,	Revisi	on 1
		YE	S NO	N/A

(A and B) or (C) within the RT window determined from the initial calibration?

ACTION: If no, use the following table to qualify pesticide analytes:

#### Continuing Calibration Verification (CCV) Action for Pesticides Analyses

	Action		
Criteria	Detected Associated Compounds	Non-Detected Associated Compounds	
RT out of RT Window	Use professional Judgment *		
Percent Difference not within limits **	J UJ		
Time elapsed is greater than acceptable limits ***	R		
Percent Difference, time elapsed and RT are No qualification within acceptable limits		fication	

- \* For peaks close to the expected RT window of the pesticide of interest, the reviewer may take additional effort to determine if sample peaks represent the compound of interest. For example, the reviewer can examine the data package for the presence of three or more standards containing the pesticide of interest that were run within the analytical sequence during which the sample was analyzed. If three or more standards are present, the RT window can be re-evaluated using the mean RT of the standards. If the peak falls within the revised window, qualify detects as "JN". Peaks that cannot be resolved with the revised window, qualify as unusable "R".
- \*\* The Percent Difference (%D) for each of the SCP and surrogates in the PEM used for CCV must be greater than or equal to -25.0% and less than or equal to 25.0%. The %D between the Calibration Factor (CF) for each of the SCP and surrogates in the Calibration Verification Standard (CS3) and the mean calibration factor from the initial calibration must be greater than or equal to -20.0% and less than or equal to 20.0%. This criteria also applies to Toxaphene.
- \*\*\* No more than 14 hours may elapse from the injection of the instrument blank that begins an analytical sequence (opening CCV) and the injection of either the PEM or mid-point concentration of the Individual Standard Mixtures (A and B) or (C) that ends an analytical sequence (closing CCV). No more than 12 hours may elapse from the injection of the instrument blank that begins an analytical sequence (opening CCV) and the injection of the last sample or blank that is part of the same analytical sequence. No more than 72 hours may elapse from the injection of the sample with a Toxaphene detection and the Toxaphene Calibration Verification Standard (CS3).

#### 8.0 Analytical Sequence Check (Form VIII-Pest)

### STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE . . . . .

SEPA Reg: ethod: Cl	ion II Dat LP/SOW, SOM01.2/Pesticide SOP HW-36/Pestic	e: Augu ide, Re	st 20 visio	07 5n 1
		YES	NO	N/A
8.1	Is Form VIII-Pest present and complete for each column and each period of analyses?	[_]		
ACTIO	N: If no, take action as specified in section 3.1			
8.2	Was the proper analytical sequence followed for each initial calibration and subsequent analyses, and all standards analyzed at the required frequency for each GC/ECD instrument used?	[_]		
ACTIO	N: If no, use professional judgment to determine the severity of the effect on the data and qualify accordingly. Generally, the effect is negligible unless the sequence was grossly altered and/or the calibration was out of QC limits.			
8.3	Are the surrogate retention time (RT) from the initial calibration for TCX and DCB provided on Form VIII-Pest?	[]		
ACTIO	N: If no, take action as specified in section 3.1			
8.4	Was the asterisk (*) applied to the RT of any blanks, samples, standards, MS/MSD, and LCS that did not meet the QC Limits of $\pm$ 0.05 minutes for TCX (tetrachloro-m-xylene) and $\pm$ 0.10 minutes for DCB (decachlorobiphenyl)?	[]		
ACTIO	N: If any data are missing, take action specified in 3.1 abo	ve.		
	If no, use professional judgment to determine the severity of the effect on the data and qualify accordingly. Document in the data assessment under Contract Problems/Non-Compliance.			
0 <u>Florisi</u> (GPC)	<u>l Cartridge (Form IX Pest-1)and Gel Permeation Chromatograph (Form IX Pest-2) Performance Check</u>	Y		
9.1	Is Form IX Pest-1 present and complete for each lot of cartridge used?	[]		
Note:	Florisil cartridge cleanup is <u>mandatory</u> for <u>all</u> extracts			
	Are all samples listed on the Pesticide Cartridge Form?	[]		
ACTIO	N: If no, take action specified in section 3.1			

USEPA Regi Method: CI	on II P/SOW, SOM01.2/Pesticide	Date: Augus SOP HW-36/Pesticide, Rev	t 2007 vision 1	
		YES	NO N/Z	Ą
9.2	Are the percent recoveries of the and surrogates in the Florisil per within 80-120% and the recovery of Trichlorophenol is less than 5%?	target pesticides formance check 2,4,5- [ ]		-

If the Florisil Cartridge Performance Check criteria were not met, qualify the data as follows:

#### Florisil Cartridge Performance Check Actions

	ACTION		
Criteria	Detected Associated Compounds	Non-Detected Associated Compounds	
<pre>%R &gt; 120% (pesticide target compounds)</pre>	J No qualificat		
80% <u>&lt;</u> %R <u>&lt;</u> 120%	No qualification		
10% < %R < 80% (pesticide target compounds)	J	IJJ	
<pre>%R &lt; 10% (pesticide target compounds)</pre>	J	R	
<pre>%R &gt; 5% (2,4,5-Trichlorophenol)</pre>	Use professional judgment *		

\* Check sample chromatogram for interferences

110%?

9.3	If GPC cleanup was performed on aqueous samples ( <u>mandatary</u>		
	for all <u>soil</u> samples), is Form IX Pest-2 present?	[]	 
	Are all soil samples listed on Form IX Pest-2?	[ ]	 
ACTION	: If no, take action as specified in section 3.1.		
9.4	Were the percent recoveries of the pesticides in the GPC continuing calibration verification solution within 80 to		

[]

ACTION: If no, qualify the sample data as follows:

#### Gel Permeation Chromatography (GPC) Performance Check Actions

	Action		
Criteria	Detected Associated Compounds	Non-Detected Associated Compounds	
%R < 10% (pesticide target compounds)	J	R	

### USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Pesticide

Date: August 2007

SOP HW-36/Pesticide, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

10% <u>&lt;</u> %R < 80%	J	IJJ
80% <u>&lt;</u> %R <u>&lt;</u> 110%	No qualification	
<pre>%R &gt; 110% (pesticide target compounds)</pre>	mpounds) J No qualificat	

#### 10.0 Laboratory Control Samples (LCS)

10.1 LCSs orovide information on the accurracy of the analytical method and laboratory performance.

LCS Spike Compound	Recovery Limits (%)	LCS Spike Compound	Recovery Limits (%)
gamma-BHC	50 - 120	Endosulfuran sulfate	50 - 120
Heptachlor epoxide	50 - 150	gamma-Chlordane	30 - 130
Dieldrin	30 - 130	Tetra-m-xylene (surrogate)	30 - 150
4,4'-DDE	50 - 150	Decachlorobiphenyl (surroagte)	30 - 150
Endrin	50 - 120		

10.2 Were the above recoveries met?

[]\_\_\_\_

[]\_\_\_\_

Action: If no, qualify the sample data as follows:

#### Laboratory Control Sample (LCS) Actions

	Action		
Criteria	Detected Associated Compounds	Non-Detected Assoicated Compounds	
%R > Upper Acceptance Limit	J	No qualification	
%R < Lower acceptance Limit	J	R	
Lower Acceptance Limit <u>&lt;</u> %R <u>&lt;</u> Upper Acceptance Limit	No qualification		

### 11.0 Pesticide Identification (Form X Pest-1, Pest-2)

11.1 Is Form X (Pest-1 & Pest-2) complete for every sample in which pesticide was detected?

ACTION: Take action as specified in section 3.1 above.

		YES	NO	N,
11.2	Are all sample chromatograms properly scaled, attenuated, etc. as required for proper identification of pesticides? (Refer to SOM01.1 sections 11.3.9 -11.3.9.7, pages D65-66)	<u>[ ]</u>		
Note:	Proper identification of pesticides depends on clear, legible presentation of the raw data. Pesticide peaks must be betwee 100% and Toxaphene between 25-100% of full scale. For any s or blank, the baseline of the chromatogram must return below of full scale before the elution time of alpha-BHC and return 25% of full scale after the elution time of alpha-BHC and be the elution of decachlorobiphenyl.	le een 10- sample w 50% rn to efore		
ACTION:	If retention times (RT) or peak apex cannot be verified, co TOPO to obtain rescaled chromatograms from the lab.	ontact		
11.3	Are there any transcription/calculation errors in Form I and Form X Pest-1, Form X Pest-2?		[]	
ACTION:	Take action as specified in section 3.1 above.			
11.4	Are the RTs of pesticides within the established RT window for analyses on both columns?	[]		
	Was the GC/MS confirmation provided for pesticides concentration > 10 ug/ml in final extract?	[]		
ACTION:	Use professional judgement to qualify positive results which were not confirmed by GC/MS analysis. Check the semivolatile TIC data for presence of pesticides.			
11.5	Is the per cent difference (%D) calculated for positive results on both columns < 25%?	[]		<u>.</u>
ACTION:	The reviewer must check columns for peak interferences for the positive hits. Qualify the pesticide according to following Table:			

Percent Differences	Qualifier
0 - 25%	None
26 - 50%	"J"
51 - 100%	"JN″

### USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Pesticide

Date: August 2007

[ ]

[ ]

[ ]

SOP HW-36/Pesticide, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

> 50% (Pesticide value < CRQL)\* "U"
> 100% "R"

\* When the pesticide value is below CRQL and %D > 50%, raise the value to CRQL and qualify "U", undetected.

#### 12.0 Target Pesticide List (TCL)

- 12.1 Are the Pesticide Analysis Data Sheets (Form I Pest) present with required header information on each page for samples, MS/MSD (if required), method and instrument blanks (per column & analysis)?
- 12.2 Is the chromatographic performance acceptable with respect to baseline stability, full-scale attenuation, peak shape/resolution?

ACTION: If no, take action specified in section 3.1 above.

#### 13.0 Compound Quantitation and Reported Detection Limits

- 13.1 Are there any transcription/calculation errors in the Form I results? Check at least two positive results. Were any errors found?
- ACTION: If errors were found, take action as specified in section 3.1 above.
- 13.2 Are the contract required quantitation limits (CRQL) adjusted to reflect sample dilution?
- ACTION: If errors exist, take action as specified in section 3.1 above.
- ACTION: When a sample is required to be diluted, the lowest CRQL is used (unless a QC exceedance dictates the use of the higher CRQL from the diluted sample). Replace concentration which exceed the calibration range in the original analysis by crossing out the "E" value on the original Form I and substituting it with the result from the diluted sample. Specify which Form I to use. Use a red pencil and draw a red "X" across the entire page of all Form I's that should not be used, including those in the data summary package.

At the top or bottom of the Forms, write with red pencil, "DO Not Use".

		STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE	•		
USEP Meth	A Regio od: CLI	on II Date: P/SOW, SOM01.2/Pesticide SOP HW-36/Pesticide	Augu , Re	st 20 visic	07 n 1
			YES	NO	N/A
	Note:	If the sample dilution factor (DF) is greater than 10, an additional 10 times more <u>concentrated</u> than the diluted sample extract must be analyzed and reported with the sample data. If the DF is less or equal to 10, but greater than 1, the results of the original undiluted analysis must also be reported (see SOM01.1/section 10.4.3.5/page D-56).			
	ACTION	: IF the above requirement was not met, contact the TOPO to a explanation/resubmittal from the lab and make a note in the Assessment under Contract Problems/Non-Compliance section.	obtain e Data	an	
	13.3	For non-aqueous samples, were the percent moisture < 70%?	[]		
		Action: If the % moisture > 70.0% and < 90.0%, qualify detect as "J" and non-detects as approximated "UJ" If the % Moisture > 90%, qualify detects as "J" and non-detect	s cs as	"R″	
14.0	<u>Field I</u>	Duplicates			
	14.1	Were any field duplicates submitted for Pesticide analysis?	[]		
	ACTION	: Compare the reported results for field duplicates and calculate the relative percent difference.			
	ACTION	: Any gross variation between duplicate results must be addressed in the reviewer narrative. If large differences exist, contact the TOPO			

24

to confirm identification of field duplicates

with the sampler.

USEPA Re	gion II	
Method:	CLP/SOW,	SOM01.2/Pesticide

Date: August 2007

SOP HW-36/Pesticide, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

. . . . . . . . . . . . . . . .

Definitions

CCS - contract compliance screening CF - Calibration Factor CLASS - Contract Laboratory Analytical Services Support CLP - Contract Laboratory Program CRQL - Contract Required Quantitation Limit GC/ECD - Gas Chromatography/Electron Capture Detector kg - kilogram µg - microgram ℓ - liter ml - milliliter PEM - Performance Evaluation Mixture QC - quality control RAS - Routine Analytical Services RPD - Relative Percent Difference RRF - Relative Response Factor RRF - Average Relative Response Factor (from initial calibration) RRT - Relative Retention Time RSD - Relative Standard Deviation RT - Retention Time RSCC - Regional Sample Control Center SCP - Single Component Pesticide SDG - Sample Delivery Group SOP - standard operating procedure SOW - Statement of Work PEST - Pesticides TCL - Target Compound List TCLP - Toxicity Characteristics Leachate Procedure TIC - Tentatively Identified Compound TPO - Technical Project Officer VTSR - Validated Time of Sample Receipt TOPO - Task Order Project Officer

USEPA Region II		Date: Aug	gust 2	2007
Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Pesticide		SOP HW-36/Pesticide, 1	Revis:	ion 1
		YE:	5 NC	N/A

#### References

- 1. USEPA Contract Laboratory Program of Work for Organic Analysis Multi-Media, Multi-Concentration, SOW/CLP/SOM01.1, October 2004 2. National Functional Guidelines for Superfund Organic Methods Data Review January 2005

SOP HW-37 **Revision 1** August 2007 SOP NO. HW-37/Aroclor Validation of Data **USEPA** Contract Laboratory Program Statement of Work for Organic Analysis of Low/Medium Concentration of Aroclor Organic Compounds SOM01.2 Date: 8 Prepared by: George Karras, Chemist Hazardous Waste Support Section mone Date: 10/ Peer Reviewed by: Russell Arnone, Chemist Hazardous Waste Support Section 10/9/07 Concurred by: Date: me Linda Mayel, Chief Hazardous Waste Support Section Date: Approved by: unun Robert Runyon, Chief Hazardous Waste Support Branch Annual Review Reviewed by: Date: Name Reviewed by: Date: Name

### TABLE OF CONTENTS

INTRO	DDUC	CTION	1
	Sco	ope and Applicability	1
	Sur	mmary	1
	Dat	ta Qualifiers	1
	Lal	b Qualifiers	2
	Rev	viewer Qualifications	<u>2</u>
PACK	AGE	COMPLETENESS AND DELIVERABLES	3
	1.	Chain of Custody and Sampling Trip Reports	3
	2.	Data Completeness and Deliverables	3
	3.	<u>Cover Letter SDG Narrative</u>	4
	4.	Data Validation Checklist	5
PART	A:	VOA ANALYSES	5
	1.	Sample Conditions/Problems	5
	2.	Holding Times	5
	3.	Deuterated Monitoring Compound (DMC) Recovery (Form II)	5
	4.	Matrix Spike/Matrix Spike Duplicate Recovery (Form III)	3
	5.	Method Blanks (Form IV)	9
	б.	<u>Contamination</u>	<u>)</u>
	7.	Aroclor Initial and Continuing Calibration	2
	8.	Analytical Sequence Check (Form VIII)	5
	9.	Sulfuric acid and GPC Cleanup	5
	10	. Laboratory Control Sample	7
	11	. Aroclor Identification	5
	12	. Target Pesticide List (TCL)	:0
	13	. Compound Quantitation and Reported Detection Limits 2	20
	14	. Field Duplicates	2
		· <u></u> · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	_
	Det	finitions	3
	Dei	finitions	<u>3</u>

#### INTRODUCTION

#### Scope and Applicability

This SOP offers detailed guidance in evaluating laboratory data generated according to the method in the "USEPA Contract Laboratory Program Statement of Work for Organics Analysis Multi-Media, Multi-Concentration, SOM01.1, May 2005". The validation procedures and actions discussed in this document are based on the requirements set forth in the "USEPA Contract Laboratory Program National Functional Guidelines for Superfund Organic Methods Data Review, January 2005". This document attempts to cover technical problems specific to low/Medium concentration of Aroclor compounds. Situations may arise where data limitations must be assessed based on the reviewer's own professional judgement.

In addition to technical requirements, contractual requirements may also be covered in this document. While it is important that instances of contract non-compliance be addressed in the Data Assessment, the technical criteria are always used to qualify the analytical data.

#### Summary

To ensure a thorough evaluation of each result in a data case, the reviewer must complete the checklist within this SOP, answering specific questions while performing the prescribed "ACTIONS" in each section. Qualifiers (or flags) are applied to questionable or unusable results as instructed. The data qualifiers discussed in this document are as follows:

#### Data Qualifiers

- U The analyte was analyzed for, but was not detected above the reported sample quantitation limit.
- J The analyte was positively identified; the associated numerical value is the approximate concentration of the analyte in the sample.
- N The analysis indicates the presence of an analyte for which there is presumptive evidence to make a "tentative identification."
- JN The analysis indicates the presence of an analyte that has been "tentatively identified" and the associated numerical value represents its approximate

concentration.

- UJ The analyte was not detected above the reported sample quantitation limit. However, the reported quantitation limit is approximate and may or may not represent the actual limit of quantitation necessary to accurately and precisely measure the analyte in the sample.
- R The sample results are rejected due to serious deficiencies in the ability to analyze the sample and meet quality control criteria. The presence or absence of the analyte cannot be verified.

### Lab Qualifiers:

- D The positive value is the result of an analysis at a secondary dilution factor.
- B The analyte is present in the associated method blank as well as in the sample. This qualifier has a different meaning when validating inorganic data.
- E The concentration of this analyte exceeds the calibration range of the instrument.
- P Aroclor target analytes when the % Difference between the analyte concentrations obtained from the two dissimilar GC columns is greater than 25%.
- C This flag applies to Aroclors results when the identification has been confirmed by GC/MS analysis.
- S Single point calibration.

The reviewer must prepare a detailed data assessment to be submitted along with the completed SOP checklist. The Data Assessment must list all data qualifications, reasons for qualifications, instances of missing data and contract noncompliance.

### Reviewer Qualifications:

Data reviewers must possess a working knowledge of the USEPA Statement of Work SOM01.2 and National Functional Guidelines mentioned above.

Date: August 2007 SOP HW-37/Aroclor, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

### PACKAGE COMPLETENESS AND DELIVERABLES

CAS	SE NUME	BER: LAB:	
SI	re name	SDG No(s).:	
1.0	<u>Chain d</u>	of Custody and Sampling Trip Reports	
	1.1	Are the Traffic Reports/Chain-of-Custody Records present for all samples?	<u>[]</u>
	ACTIO	N: If no, contact RSCC, or the TOPO to obtain replacement of missing or illegible copies from the lab.	
	1.2	Is the Sampling Trip Report present for all samples?	<u> </u>
	ACTIO	N: If no, contact either RSCC or ask the TOPO to obtain the necessary information from the prime contractor.	
2.0	<u>Data C</u>	ompleteness and Deliverables	
	2.1	Have any missing deliverables been received and added to the data package?	[_]
	ACTIO	N: Contact the TOPO to obtain an explanation or resubmittal of any missing deliverables from the If lab cannot provide them, note the effect on t review of the data package in the Contract	e lab. he

3

USEPA R Method:	egion II Date: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Aroclor SOP HW-37/Aroclor,	Augu: Revi:	st 20 sion	007 1
		YES	NO	N/A
	Problems/Non-compliance section of the Data Assessment.			
2.	2 Was SMO/CLASS CCS checklist included with the package?	[_]		
2.	Are there any discrepancies between the Traffic Reports/Chain-of-Custody Records, and Sampling Trip Report?		[ ]	
AC'	TION: If yes, contact the TOPO to obtain an explanation resubmittal of any missing deliverables from the laboratory.	or		
3.0 <u>Cov</u>	er Letter SDG Narrative			
3.	l Is the SDG Narrative or Cover Letter Present?	[]		
3.	2 Are case number, SDG number and contract number contained in the SDG Narrative or cover letter (see SOW, Exhibit B, section 2.5.1)? EPA sample numbers in the SDG, detailed documentation of any quality control, sample, shipment, and/or analytical problems encountered in processing the samples? Corrective action taken?	[]		
3.	Does the Narrative contain the following information SOM01.1, page B-12, section 2.5.1)? column used, storage of samples, case#, SDG#, analytical problems, and discrepancies between field and lab weights.			
3.	5 Did the contractor record the temperature of the cooler on the Form DC-1, Item 9 - Cooler Temperature, and in the SDG Narrative?	[_]		
3.	5 Does the Case Narrative contain the "verbatim" statement (page B-12, section 2.5.1 of the SOM)?	[_]		

4

Date: August 2007 SOP HW-37/Aroclor, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

ACTION: If "No", to any question in this section, contact the TOPO to obtain necessary resubmittals. If unavailable, document under the Contract Problems/ Non-Compliance section of the Data Assessment.

#### 4.0 Data Validation Checklist

4.1 Check the package for the following (see SOM reporting requirements, section 2.1, page B-10):

a. Is the package paginated in ascending order starting from the SDG narrative?	· <u>[]</u>
b. Are all forms and copies legible?	
c. Assembled in the order set forth in the SOW	I? []
d. All Aroclor Data present?	<u> </u>

### PART A: Low/Medium Aroclor Analyses

#### 1.0 <u>Sample Conditions/Problems</u>

- 1.1 Do the Traffic Reports/Chain-of-Custody Records, Sampling Trip Report or Lab Narrative indicate any problems with sample receipt, condition of samples, analytical problems or special circumstances affecting the quality of the data? \_\_\_\_\_ [\_] \_\_\_\_
- ACTION: If samples were not iced or the ice was melted upon arrival at the laboratory and the temperature of the cooler was > 10° C, then flag all positive results with a "J" and all non-detects "UJ".

### 2.0 Holding Times

#### STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE . . . . .

USEPA Region II			Date:	August 2	007
Method: CLP/SOW,	SOM01.2/Aroclor	SOP I	HW-37/Aroclor,	Revision	1

YES NO N/A

[ ]

- 2.1 Have any Aroclor technical holding times, determined from date of collection to date of analysis, been exceeded?
- 2.2 Preservation: <u>Aqueous</u> and <u>Non-aqueous</u> samples must be cooled at 4°C ± 2°C.

ACTION: Qualify sample results according to the following table.

Holding Time Actions for Low/Medium Aroclor Analyses

			Action		
Matrix	Preserved	Criteria	Detected Associated Compounds	Non-Detected Associated Compounds	
	No	<pre>&lt; 7 days (extraction) &lt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	J*	UJ*	
Aqueous	No	<pre>&gt; 7 days (extraction) &gt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	J	UJ	
	Yes	<pre>&lt; 7 days (extraction) &lt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	No qualification		
	Yes	<pre>&gt; 7 days (extraction) &gt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	J	UJ	
	Yes/No	> 28 Days (extraction)	J	R	
	No	<pre>&lt; 14 days (extraction) &lt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	*٦	UJ*	
Non-aqueous	No	> 14 days (extraction) > 40 days (analysis)	J	UJ	
	Yes	<pre>&lt; 14 days (extraction) &lt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	No qualification		
	Yes	<pre>&gt; 14 days (extraction) &gt; 40 days (analysis)</pre>	J	UJ	
	Yes/No	> 28 Days (extraction)	J	R	

\* Only if cooler temperature exceeds 10°C (see ACTION in Section 1.1 above). No action required if temperature  $\leq$  10°C.

### Date: August 2007 SOP HW-37/Aroclor, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

### 3.0 Surrogate Recovery (Form II ARO-1, Form II ARO-2, Form VIII ARO)

3.1	Are the Aroclor Recovery Summary Forms present?	[ ]		
ACTION	Contact the TOPO to obtain an explanation/resubmittal fro lab. If missing deliverables are unavailable, document t effect in the Data Assessment.	om the the		
3.2 W ( M	Vere the two surrogates, tetrachloro-m-xylene TCX) and decachlorobiphenyl (DCB) added to all samples, NS/MSD, LCS, blanks including standards?	[_]		
ACTION	If no, use professional judgment in qualifying data as missing surrogate analyte may not directly apply to target analytes.			
3.3	Were outliers marked with an asterisk on Form II?	[]		
ACTION	Circle all outliers with a red <u>pencil</u> .			
	If yes, were effected samples re-analyzed?	[]		
3.4	The RTs of the surrogates in each mid-point Aroclor standards used for continuing calibration verification, all samples, including MS/MSD, LCS and all blanks must be within the calculated RT window. TCX must be within $\pm$ 0.05 minutes and DCB must be within $\pm$ 0.10 minutes of the mean retention time (RT) determined from the initial calibration and tabulated in Form VIII Pest.			
	Were any outliers marked with an asterisk on Form VIII ARO?		[_]	
ACTION	Circle all outliers with a red <u>pencil</u> . If any Surrogate outside the required limits, qualify their associated tar	is get		

#### Surrogate Compound Recovery Action for Aroclors

compounds (See Table below) as follows:

	Action			
Criteria	Detected Target Compounds	Non-Detected Target Compounds		
%R > 200%	J	No qualification		
150% < %R <u>&lt;</u> 200%	J	No qualification		
30% <u>&lt;</u> %R <u>&lt;</u> 150%	No qualif:	ication		
10% <u>&lt;</u> %R < 30%	J	UJ		

### Date: August 2007 SOP HW-37/Aroclor, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

[ ]

<pre>%R &lt; 10% (sample dilution not a factor)</pre>	J	R
<pre>%R &lt; 10% (sample dilution is a factor)</pre>	J	Use Professional Judgement
RT out of RT window	Use profession	nal judgment
RT within RT window	No qualif:	ication

#### Note: Blank analysis having surrogates out of specification:

The reviewer must give special consideration to the validity of associated samples. Basic concern is whether the blank problems represent an isolated problem with the blank alone or whether there is a fundamental problem with the analytical process. For example, if one or more samples in the batch show acceptable surrogate recoveries, the reviewer may choose to consider the blank problem to be an isolated occurrence.

- ACTION: Note in the Data Assessment under Contract Problems/ Non-Compliance if the Lab did not perform reanalysis and reviewer's judgment regarding blank problem.
- 3.5 Are there any transcription/calculation errors between raw data and Form IIs?
- ACTION: If large errors exist, ask the TOPO to obtain an explanation/resubmittal from the lab, make any necessary corrections and note errors in the data assessment.
- Note: Surrogate recovery limits criteria and qualification apply to samples diluted 5X and less. For samples diluted greater than 5X, recovery criteria does not apply Because it is assumed surrogate is diluted below the quantitation range.

#### 4.0 Matrix Spike/Matrix Spike Duplicate Recovery (Form III)

Note: Data for MS/MSD will not be present unless requested.

- 4.1 Are the MS/MSD Recovery Forms (Form III ARO) present?
- 4.2 Was the MS/MSD analyzed at the required frequency (once per SDG, or every 20 samples, whichever is more frequent)? []
- ACTION: If any MS/MSD data are missing, take action as specified in section 3.1 above.
- ACTION: No action is taken on MS/MSD data <u>alone.</u> However, using professional judgement, the validator may use the MS and MSD results in conjunction with other QC criteria and determine the need for some qualification of the data. If Any MS/MSD % recovery or RPD is out of specification, qualify data to include the consideration of the existence of interference in the raw

### Date: August 2007 SOP HW-37/Aroclor, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

[ ]

[]

[]

data. Consideration include, but not limited to the following "Action":

#### Matrix Spike/Matrix Spike Duplicate Action for Aroclor

	Action		
Criteria	Detected Spike Compounds	Non-detected Spike Compounds	
<pre>%R or RPD &gt; Upper Acceptance Limit</pre>	J	No qualification	
20% <u>&lt;</u> %R < Lower Acceptance Limit	J	UJ	
%R < 20%	Use professional judgment		
Lower Acceptance Limit <u>&lt;</u> %R; RPD <u>&lt;</u> Upper Acceptance Limit	No qualification		

Note: If it can be determined that the results of the MS/MSD affects only the sample spiked, limit qualification to only this sample. However, use professional judgment when it is determined through the MS/MSD results that the laboratory is having systematic problem in the analysis of one or more analytes that affect all associated samples.

#### 5.0 Blanks (Form IV)

- 5.1 Is the Aroclor Method Blank Summary (Form IV ARO) present for aqueous and soil samples?
- 5.2 <u>Frequency of Analysis</u>: For the analysis of AROCLOR, has a method blank been analyzed for each SDG or every 20 samples, whichever is more frequent?
- ACTION: If any blank data are missing, take action as specified above in section 3.1. If blank data is not available, reject "R" all associated positive data. However, using professional judgement, the data reviewer may substitute field blank data for missing method blank data.
- 5.3 A separate Form IV should be present if part of an extraction batch required sulfur removal. In such cases some samples will be listed on two blank summary forms once under the method blank, and once under the sulfur clean-up blank (PCBLK). Was this additional blank raw data and Form IV submitted when required?
- ACTION: If Form IV sulfur clean-up blank is missing, take action as specified in section 3.1 above.

### STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE . . . .

USEPA Metho	A Regio d: CLI	on II P/SOW, SOM01.2/Aroclor SOP H	Date: IW-37/Aroclor,	Augu: Revi:	st 20 sion	007 1
				YES	NO	N/A
	5.4	Has a Aroclor instrument blank been analyzed beginning of every 12 hr. period following t calibration sequence (minimum contract requi	at the he initial rement)?	[]		
	ACTION:	: If any blank data are missing, take action Section 3.1.	n specified in			
	5.5	Was the correct identification scheme used f blanks? (See page B-39, section 3.3.7.3 of S further information)	or all Aroclor OM01.1 for	[]		
	ACTION:	: Contact the TOPO to obtain resubmittals or make the required corrections on the forms Document in the Data Assessment under Cont Problems/Non-Compliance all corrections ma by the validator.	c. cract ade			
	5.6	<u>Chromatography</u> : Review the blank raw data ch quant. Reports and data system printout. Is chromatographic performance (baseline stabil) acceptable for each instrument?	romatogram, the ity)	[]		
	ACTION:	: Use professional judgement to determine th	ne effect on the	data.		
	5.7	Are all detected hits for target compounds i field blanks less than the CRQL?	n method, and	[]		
	ACTION:	: IF no, an explanation and laboratory's cor addressed in the case SDG narrative. Cont revised narrative and make a note in the C section of the Data Assessment.	rrective actions r tact TOPO to requ Contract Problems	must b est fr /Non-C	e om La ompli	b. ance
6.0 <u>Ca</u>	ontamina	ation				
	NOTE :	"Water blanks", "drill blanks", and distille validated like any other sample, and are <u>not</u> Do not confuse them with the other QC blanks	d water blanks" a used to qualify discussed below.	are data.		
	6.1	Do any method/reagent or cleanup blanks cont hits for target Aroclor compounds with value the CRQL for that analyte?	ain positive s greater than		[_]	
	Note: 1 k	The concentration of each target compound in the blank must be less than the CRQL for that ana	the instrument lyte.			
	ACTION:	: Make note in data assessment under Contract Compliance if any blank contains hit above	Problems/Non- the CRQLs.			
	6.2	Do any instrument blanks contain positive Ar with values greater than CRQLs?	oclor results		[]	

### Date: August 2007 SOP HW-37/Aroclor, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

[]

ACTION: Take the action specified in section 6.1.

- 6.3 Do any field/rinse blanks have positive Aroclor results? \_\_\_\_ [ ] \_\_
- NOTE: All field blank results associated with a particular group of samples (may exceed one per case) must be used to qualify data. Blanks may not be qualified because of contamination in another blank. Field blanks must be qualified for system monitoring compound, instrument performance criteria, spectral or calibration QC problems.
- ACTION: Follow the directions in the table below to qualify results due to contamination. Use the largest value from all the associated blanks. If any blanks are grossly contaminated, all associated sample data should be qualified unusable (R).

Blank Type	Blank Result	Sample Result	Action for Samples
	Detects	Not detected	No qualification required
	< CRQL	< CRQL	Report CRQL value with a U
		> CRQL	No qualification required
	= CRQL	< CRQL	Report CRQL value with a U
Method, Field,		≥ CRQL	No qualification required
Sulfur Cleanup,		< CRQL	Report CRQL value with a U
Instrument	> CRQL	<u>&gt;</u> CRQL and < blank contamination	Report concentration of sample with a U
		≥ CRQL and ≥ blank contamination	No qualification required
	Gross contamination	Detects	Qualify results as unusable R

#### Blank Action for Aroclor Analyses

NOTE: Analytes qualified "U" for blank contamination are treated as "hits" when qualifying for calibration criteria. Note: When applied as described in the table above, the contaminant concentration in the blank are multiplied by the sample dilution factor.

6.4 Are there field/rinse/equipment blanks associated with every sample?

### Date: August 2007 SOP HW-37/Aroclor, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

[]

ACTION: Note in data assessment if there's no associated field/rinse/equipment blank.

Exception: samples taken from a drinking water tap do not have associated field blanks.

#### 7.0 Aroclor Initial and Continuing Calibration

7.1 Are the following Forms, chromatograms and data system printouts present?

a.) Form	VI ARO-1/Aroclor	Initial	Calibration	(Multipoint)	[ ]	 
b.) Form	VI ARO-2/Aroclor	Initial	Calibration	(Multipoint)		
c.) Form	VI ARO-3/Aroclor	Initial	Calibration	(Singlepoint)		 
d.) Form	VII ARO/Aroclor	Calibrati	lon Verificat	zion	[ ]	 
e.) Form	VIII ARO/Aroclor	Analvtic	cal Sequence		[ ]	 
f) Form	X APO/Identifica	tion Sum	ary for Mult	icomponent	[_]	 
Anal	ysis		Mary IOI Murt			
						 <u> </u>

### 7.2 Initial Calibration

7.2.1 Was the following contract required initial calibration sequence provided by the laboratory?

Initial Calibration Sequence					
1.	Aroclor 1221 CS3 (400ng/ml)				
2.	Aroclor 1232 CS3 (400 ng/ml)				
3.	Aroclor 1242 CS3 (400 ng/ml)				
4.	Aroclor 1248 CS3 (400 ng/ml)				
5.	Aroclor 1254 CS3 (400 ng/ml)				
6.	Aroclor 1262 CS3 (400 ng/ml)				
7.	Aroclor 1268 CS3 (400 ng/ml)				
8.	Aroclor1016/1260 (100 ng/ml) CS1				
9.	Aroclor1016/1260 (200 ng/ml) CS1				
10.	Aroclor1016/1260 (400 ng/ml) CS1				
11.	Aroclor1016/1260 (800 ng/ml) CS1				

#### STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE . . . .

### USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Aroclor

### Date: August 2007 SOP HW-37/Aroclor, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

[ ]

[ ]

[]

[ ]

[ ]

12.	Aroclor1016/1260		(1600	ng/ml)	CS1
13.	Instrument	Blank			

- ACTION: If initial calibration is not performed or not performed in the proper sequence, notify the TOPO and make a note in the data assessment.
- 7.3 Are there any transcription/calculation errors between raw data and the Forms?

ACTION: If large errors exist, take action specified in section 3.1 above.

#### 7.4 <u>Mean Retention Time (RT) and RT Window</u>

Were the following mean RT and RT window met:

a.) The mean RT of each of the three to five major peaks were determined from the five-point initial calibration for all Aroclors

b.) RT window was calculated as  $\pm$  0.07 for each of the three to five major peaks and  $\pm$  0.05 and  $\pm$  0.10 for the surrogates tetrachloro-m-xylene and decachlorobiphenyl, respectively.

ACTION: If no, follow the action as specified in section 3.1.

7.5 Was at least one chromatogram from each of the Aroclor standards yield peaks that give deflection between 50-100% of full scale?

ACTION: IF no, take action as specified in section 3.1.

- 7.6 Was the mean Calibration Factor (CF) calculated for the three to five major peaks of each Aroclor, as well as for the surrogates, over the initial calibration range?
- 7.7 Were the Percent Relative Standard Deviation (%RSD) of the Calibration Factor for the three to five major peaks < 20% of each of the Aroclor compounds and surrogates?
- ACTION: If no, take action as specified in the following Table.

#### Initial Calibration Action for Aroclor Analyses

Action

Criteria

### Date: August 2007 SOP HW-37/Aroclor, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

	Detected Associated Compounds	Non-Detected Associated Compounds	
Initial calibration is not performed or not performed in proper sequence	Use Professional Judgment and notify Contract Lab Program (CLP) Project Officer		
<pre>%RSD exceeds allowable limits *</pre>	J	UJ	
%RSD within allowable limits *	No qualif	Eication	

\* %RSD < 20.0% for Aroclors and surrogates (tetrachloro-m-xylene and decachlorobiphenyl.

#### 7.8 Continuing Calibration Verification (CCV) (Form VII)

Were the Absolute Retention Time (RT) for each Aroclor and surrogate in the mid-point concentration (CS3) of the Standard used for CCV must be within the RT window determined from the initial calibration?

- 7.9 For opening CCV, or closing CCV that is used as an opening CCV for the next 12-hour period, the Percent Difference (%D) between the CF of each of the three to five peaks used to identify an Aroclor and surrogates in the mid-point concentration (CS3) of the Aroclor standards and the CF from the initial calibration must be within ±15.0%.
- 7.10 For a closing CCV, the %D between the CF of each of the three to five peaks used to identify an Aroclor and surrogates in the mid-point concentration (CS3) of the Aroclor standards and the CF from the initial calibration must be within <u>+</u>50.0%.
- 7.11 No more than 14 hours may elapse from the injection of the instrument Blank that begins an analytical sequence (opening CCV) and the injection of the last mid-point concentration (CS3) of the Aroclor standards that ends an analytical sequence (closing CCV).
- 7.12 No more than 12 hours may elapse from the injection of the instrument blank that begins an analytical sequence (opening CCV and the injection of the last sample or blank that is part of the same analytical sequence.

Were sections 7.8 to 7.12 met?

[ ]

ACTION: If no, use the following table to qualify Aroclor data:

#### Continuing Calibration Verification (CCV) Action for Aroclor Analyses

### Date: August 2007 SOP HW-37/Aroclor, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

	Action		
Criteria	Detected Associated Compounds	Non-Detected Associated Compounds	
RT out of RT Window	Use professional Judgment *		
Percent Difference not within limits $\pm$ 15% as specified in section 7.9 above	J	υJ	
Percent Difference not within limits $\pm$ 50% as specified in section 7.10 above	J	IJJ	
Time elapsed is greater than acceptable limits as specified in section 7.11 & 7.12 above	R		
Percent Difference, time elapsed and RT are within acceptable limits	No qualification		

\* For <u>non-detected</u> target compounds in the affected samples, check to see if the sample chromatogram contain any peak that are close to the expected RT window of the Aroclor of interest.

If no peaks are present, consider the non-detected values to be valid and no qualification of the data is necessary.

If any peaks are present close to the expected RT window of the Aroclor of interest, qualify the non-detected values as presumptively present "N".

For <u>detected compounds</u> in the affected samples, if the peaks are within the RT window, no qualification of the data is necessary. If the peaks are close to the expected RT window of the Aroclors of interest, the reviewer may take additional effort to determine if sample peaks represent the compound of interest.

For example, the reviewer can examine the data package for the presence of three or more standards containing the Aroclor of interest that were run within the analytical sequence during which the sample was analyzed. If three or more such standards are present, the RT window can be re-evaluated using the mean RT of the standards.

If the peaks in the affected sample fall within the revised window, qualify the detected Aroclor as "JN".

If the reviewer cannot do anything with the data to resolve the problem of concern, qualify all non-detects as unuseable "R".

#### 8.0 Analytical Sequence Check (Form VIII-ARO)

## STANDARD OPERATING PROCEDURE . . . . .

USEP. Meth	A Regio od: CLI	Date: Date: Date: P/SOW, SOM01.2/Aroclor SOP HW-37/Aroclor,	Augu Revi	st 2 sion	007 1
<u></u>			YES	NO	N/A
	8.1	Is Form VIII-Pest present and complete for each column and each period of analyses?	[_]		
	ACTION	If no, take action as specified in section 3.1			
	8.2	Was the proper analytical sequence followed for each initial calibration and subsequent analyses, and all standards analyzed at the required frequency for each GC/ECD instrument used?	[]		
	ACTION	If no, use professional judgment to determine the severity of the effect on the data and qualify accordingly. Generally, the effect is negligible unless the sequence was grossly altered and/or the calibration was out of QC limits.			
	8.3	Are the surrogate retention time (RT) from the initial calibration for TCX and DCB provided on Form VIII-Pest?	[]		
	ACTION	: If no, take action as specified in section 3.1			
	8.4	Was the asterisk (*) applied to the RT of any blanks, samples, standards, MS/MSD, and LCS that did not meet the QC Limits of $\pm$ 0.05 minutes for TCX (tetrachloro-m-xylene) and $\pm$ 0.10 minutes for DCB (decachlorobiphenyl)?	[]		
	ACTION	: If any data are missing, take action specified in 3.1 above.			
		If no, use professional judgment to determine the severity of the effect on the data and qualify accordingly. Document in the data assessment under Contract Problems/Non-Compliance.			
9.0 <u>s</u>	ulfuric Procedu	Acid and Gel Permeation Chromatography (GPC) Cleanup			
	9.1	Was sulfuric acid added to all extracts?	[]		
	Note: S	Sulfuric acid cleanup is <u>mandatory</u> for <u>all</u> extracts			
	ACTION	: If no, take action specified in section 3.1			
	9.2	Gel Permeation Chromatography (GPC			
		GPC is an optional cleanup procedure for both aqueous and non-aqueous samples that contain high molecular weight compounds that interfere with Aroclor analysis.			

### Date: August 2007 SOP HW-37/Aroclor, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

- 9.3 If GPC cleanup was performed on samples, GPC calibration is acceptable if the two UV traces meet the following requirements.
  - a. Peaks must be observed and should be symmetrical for all compounds in the calibration solution.
  - b. Corn oil and phthalate peaks should exhibit greater than 85% resolution.
  - c. The phthalate and Methoxychlor peaks should exhibit greater than 85% resolution.
  - d. Methoxychlor and perylene peaks should exhibit greater than 85% resolution.
  - e. Perylene and sulfur peaks must be saturated and should exhibit greater than 90% baseline resolution.
  - f. The RT shift is less than 5% between UV traces for bis(2-ethylhexylphthalate and perylene.
- 9.4 Were all above criteria met?
- ACTION: If no, examine the raw data for the presence of high molecular weight contaminants. Examine the subsequent sample data for unusual peaks and use professional judgment in qualifying the data.

#### <u>10.0</u> Laboratory Control Samples (LCSs)

10.1 LCSs provide information on the accuracy of the analytical method and laboratory performance.

#### Aroclor Laboratory Control Sample Recovery - Aqueous and Non-Aqueous

Compound	% Recovery QC Limits
Aroclor 1016	50 - 150
Aroclor 1260	50 - 150
Tetrachloro-m-xylene (surrogate)	30 - 150
Decachlorobiphenyl (surrogate)	30 - 150

10.2 Were the above recoveries met?

ACTION: If no, qualify the sample data as follows:

[]

[]

### Date: August 2007 SOP HW-37/Aroclor, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

[ ]

[ ]

	ACTION		
Criteria	Detected Associated Compound	Non-Detected Associated Compound	
%R> Upper Acceptance Limit	J	No qualification	
%R< Lower Acceptance Limit	J	R	
Lower Acceptance Limit < %R < Upper Acceptance Limit	No qualification		

### 11.0 <u>Aroclor Identification (Form X ARO/Identification Summary for Multicomponent</u> <u>Analysis</u>

11.1 Is Form X (ARO) complete for every sample in which Aroclor was detected?

ACTION: Take action as specified in section 3.1 above.

- 11.2 The identification of a Multi component Aroclor by GC method is based primarily on RT data and pattern recognition. Were the following requirements met:
- a.) A Minimum of 3 major peaks were selected for each Aroclor. If more than one Aroclor is observed in a sample, a peak common to other Aroclor(s) must not be used to quantitate other Aroclor. Lab must choose different peaks to quantitate each Aroclor.
- b.) If a chromatogram is replotted electronically to meet these requirements, the scaling factor used must be displayed on the chromatogram, and both the initial chromatogram and the replotted chromatogram must be submitted in the data package.
- c.) The Retention Time (RT) of both of the surrogates and reported target compounds must be within the calculated RT window of both columns.
| USEPA Re | egion II |                 |
|----------|----------|-----------------|
| Method:  | CLP/SOW, | SOM01.2/Aroclor |

## Date: August 2007 SOP HW-37/Aroclor, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

[]

[ ]

[ ]

- d.) When no analytes are identified in the sample, the chromatograms of the sample extract must use the same scaling factor used for the low-point standard of the initial calibration associated with those samples.
- e.) Chromatogram must display the largest peak of any Aroclor detected in the sample at less than full scale.
- f.) If an extract must be diluted, chromatograms must display Aroclor peaks between 25-100% of full scale.
- ACTION: If retention times (RT) or peak apex cannot be verified, contact TOPO to obtain rescaled chromatograms from the lab.

If data reviewer identifies a peak in both GC columns that fall within the appropriate RT windows, but was reported as non-detect, the compound may be false negative. If necessary, contact TOPO to instruct laboratory to reevaluate the chromatograms.

11.3 Are there any transcription/calculation errors in Form I and Form X ARO?

ACTION: Take action as specified in section 3.1 above.

- 11.4 Are the RTs of Aroclor peaks within the established RT window for analyses on both columns?
- 11.5 Was the GC/MS confirmation provided for Aroclor concentration > 10 ug/ml in final extract?
- NOTE: Laboratory is required to contact SMO to determine if GC/MS confirmation is required. Check the semivolatile TIC data for presence of Aroclors.
- 11.6 Is the per cent difference (%D) calculated for positive results on both columns < 25%? []</pre>
- Action: Reviewer must check columns for peak interferences for the positive hits. Qualify the Arclor (s) according to the following Table:

Date: August 2007 SOP HW-37/Aroclor, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

[ ]

[ ]

[]

Action on Qualifying Positive Aroclor Results

Percent Differences	Qualifier
0 - 25%	None
26 - 50%	"J"
51 - 100%	"JN″
> 50% (Aroclor value < CRQL)*	"U"
> 100%	"R"

- \* When the Aroclor value is below CRQL and %D > 50%, raise the value to CRQL and qualify "U", undetected.
- NOTE: Professional judgement must be utilized when identifying PCBs, especially when samples are highly contaminated, and possess a significant amount of matrix interference.

### 12.0 Target Aroclor List (TCL)

- 12.1 Are the Aroclor Analysis Data Sheets (Form I ARO) present with required header information on each page for samples, MS/MSD (if required), method and instrument blanks (per column & analysis)?
- 12.2 Is the chromatographic performance acceptable with respect to baseline stability, full-scale attenuation, peak shape/resolution?

ACTION: If no, take action specified in section 3.1 above.

#### 13.0 Compound Quantitation and Reported Detection Limits

- 13.1 Are there any transcription/calculation errors in the Form I results? Check at least two positive results. Were any errors found?
- ACTION: If errors were found, take action as specified in section 3.1 above.
- 13.2 Are the contract required quantitation limits (CRQL) adjusted to reflect sample dilution? []

USEPA Re	egion II	
Method:	CLP/SOW,	SOM01.2/Aroclor

## Date: August 2007 SOP HW-37/Aroclor, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

[\_] \_\_\_\_

ACTION: If errors exist, take action as specified in section 3.1 above.

ACTION: When a sample is required to be diluted, the lowest CRQL is used (unless a QC exceedance dictates the use of the higher CRQL from the diluted sample). Replace concentration which exceed the calibration range in the original analysis by crossing out the "E" value on the original Form I and substituting it with the result from the diluted sample. Specify which Form I to use. Use a red pencil and draw a red "X" across the entire page of all Form I's that should not be used, including those in the data summary package.

At the top or bottom of the Forms, write with red pencil, "DO Not Use".

- Note: If the sample dilution factor (DF) is greater than 10, an additional 10 times more <u>concentrated</u> than the diluted sample extract must be analyzed and reported with the sample data. If the DF is less or equal to 10, but greater than 1, the results of the original undiluted analysis must also be reported (see SOM01.1/section 10.3.3.4/page D-44/ARO).
- ACTION: IF the above requirement was not met, contact the TOPO to obtain an explanation/resubmittal from the lab and make a note in the Data Assessment under Contract Problems/Non-Compliance section.
- 13.3 For non-aqueous samples, were the percent moisture < 70%?

Action: If the % moisture > 70.0% and < 90.0%, qualify detects as "J" and non-detects as approximated "UJ" If the % Moisture > 90%, qualify detects as "J" and non-detects as "R"

#### 14.0 Field Duplicates

- 14.1 Were any field duplicates submitted for Aroclor analysis?
- ACTION: Compare the reported results for field duplicates and calculate the relative percent difference.
- ACTION: Any gross variation between duplicate results must be addressed in the reviewer narrative. If large differences exist,

USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Aroclor Date: August 2007 SOP HW-37/Aroclor, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

contact the TOPO to confirm identification of field duplicates with the sampler.

# USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Aroclor

Date: August 2007 SOP HW-37/Aroclor, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

### Definitions

ARO - Aroclor CCS - contract compliance screening CF - Calibration Factor CLASS - Contract Laboratory Analytical Services Support CLP - Contract Laboratory Program CRQL - Contract Required Quantitation Limit GC/ECD - Gas Chromatography/Electron Capture Detector kg - kilogram µq - microgram ℓ - liter mℓ - milliliter QC - quality control RAS - Routine Analytical Services RPD - Relative Percent Difference RRF - Relative Response Factor RRF - Average Relative Response Factor (from initial calibration) RRT - Relative Retention Time RSD - Relative Standard Deviation RT - Retention Time RSCC - Regional Sample Control Center SDG - Sample Delivery Group SOP - standard operating procedure SOW - Statement of Work TCL - Target Compound List TCLP - Toxicity Characteristics Leachate Procedure TIC - Tentatively Identified Compound TPO - Technical Project Officer VTSR - Validated Time of Sample Receipt TOPO - Task Order Project Officer

# USEPA Region II Method: CLP/SOW, SOM01.2/Aroclor

# Date: August 2007 SOP HW-37/Aroclor, Revision 1

YES NO N/A

### References

- 1. USEPA Contract Laboratory Program of Work for Organic Analysis Multi-Media, Multi-Concentration, SOW/CLP/SOM01.1, October 2004
- 2. National Functional Guidelines for Superfund Organic Methods Data Review January 2005